For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Marian Morrison 020 8547 4623
email: marian.morrison@kingston.gov.uk

Published on 5 July 2017

Health Overview Panel
Date:

Thursday 13 July 2017

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames

Members of the Committee
Councillor Rowena Bass (Chair), Councillor Maria Netley (Vice Chair), Councillor Sushila
Abraham, Councillor Geoff Austin, Councillor Paul Bedforth, Councillor Mary Clark,
Councillor Sheila Griffin, Councillor David Fraser, Councillor Shiraz Mirza and Councillor
Rachel Reid
Advisory Members
To be appointed at the meeting

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

Free Wifi can be accessed in the Council Chamber:
User name – rbkpublic
Password - freewifi

2

AGENDA
Questions and public participation


a 20 minute question and answer session at the start of the meeting –advance
notice of questions is encouraged.



contributions during the debate on items may be made at the discretion of the Chair

1.

Questions
To consider questions from the gallery on items which are not on the agenda

2.

Apologies for absence and attendance of substitute members

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Minutes
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2017

5.

Appointment of Advisory Members
To appoint the following advisory members for the 2017/18 municipal year:




6.

Grahame Snelling, Chair of Healthwatch
Kate Dudley, Chair of Kingston Carers’ Network and Alternate David Still, Adult
Carers Service Manager
Dr Jane D’Souza, GP Advisory Member

Update on key roles, drivers and changes for Kingston health
and social care partners
To consider the attached report and ask any questions.
The report includes contributions from:
 Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group
 GP Chambers
 Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
 South West London and St George’s NHS Mental Health Trust
 Healthwatch Kingston
 Your Healthcare (Annex 1)
 Adult Social Care – Kingston Co-ordinated Care (Annex 2

Appendix A

3
7.

Work Programme

Appendix B

To agree one to two main topics for consideration at the remaining
meetings in the 2017/18 Municipal Year (Thursday 12 October,
Thursday 7 December and Wednesday 28 March).
8.

Annual Report of the Health Overview Panel 2016/17

Appendix C

To receive the annual report which describes the work undertaken in the past year
9.

Question Time
To agree that individual questioners may take up no more than 2 minutes per
person (plus time for officer responses) during the 20 minutes question time at the
beginning of the meeting.

10.

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Appendix D

To consider the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on
28 March 2017 and 15 June 2017
11.

Urgent Items authorised by the Chair

12.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

This item is included as a standard agenda item which will only be relevant if any exempt
matter is to be considered at the meeting:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in Part I of
Schedule 12A to the Act *, would be disclosed.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated eg paragraph 1 for information relating to
any individual)
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
Meetings are held at the Guildhall, High Street, Kingston upon Thames and start at
7.30pm unless otherwise stated on the agenda.


Thursday 12 October 2017



Thursday 7 December 2017



Wednesday 28 March 2018

4

Welcome to this meeting.
The following information explains the way some things are done at the meeting.
Information about the Health Overview Panel
The Panel is made up of your local elected Councillors plus Advisory Members who have been coopted to represent specific interests. Its role is outlined below:
The Panel may review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation
of the health service commissioned or delivered in this authority’s area. It may make reports or
recommendations to the Council, Health and Wellbeing Board or the appropriate Strategic
Committee, health bodies, other relevant agencies and providers of services on any matter it has
reviewed or scrutinised. The Panel may review:
 arrangements made by NHS bodies to secure hospital and community health services
to the local residents
 the provision of such services to local residents
 the provision of family health services, personal medical services
personal dental services, pharmacy and NHS ophthalmic services
 the public health arrangements in the area
 the planning of health services by NHS bodies, including plans made in co-operation
with local authorities, setting out a strategy for improving both the health of the local
population, and the provision of health care to that population
 the plans, strategies and decisions of the local Health and Wellbeing Board
 the arrangements made by NHS bodies for consulting and involving
patients and the public under the duty placed on them by Sections 242
and 244 of the NHS Act 2006
 any matter referred to the Panel by Healthwatch under the Health
and Social Care Act 2012
 social care services and other related services delivered by this authority.
The Panel may respond as a consultee to NHS bodies in respect of proposals for
substantial development of the health service in the authority’s area; and any proposals to
make any substantial variations to the provision of such services.
Public participation during the meeting
There is a Question Time of up to 20 minutes from 7.30pm – 7.50pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Secretary at the top table.

5
Questions sent in before the meeting will be answered at the meeting. Depending on officers
and health representatives present it may not be possible to answer questions handed in at
the meeting and these will be replied to in writing to the questioner where address or email
details are provided and members of the committee. The Chair may disallow any question
which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a pink form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Secretary if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.
Accessibility






All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Webcasting of the meeting
This meeting will be webcast live on https://kingston.public-i.tv/core/portal/home and a recording
will also be available to watch back a few hours afterwards. Recordings are accessible for a period
of 12 months. Members of the public sitting in the public seating area will not generally be in direct
camera shot but we cannot always guarantee this so please note that, by attending the meeting
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings
for webcasting and/or training purposes.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests

6
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Minutes
Unlike minutes of other committees the Panel’s minutes capture the item and main points of
discussion and record any decision or recommendations agreed by the Panel at the meeting.

A1

Appendix A

Health Overview Panel
13 July 2017
Update on key roles, drivers and changes for Kingston health and social care
partners
Report by Head of Corporate Governance
Purpose
To provide an up to date summary on the key drivers and changes for Kingston
health and social care partners.
Recommendations
The Panel is requested to note the report and ask any questions they may have.

This report is formed of submissions from the following local health and social care
partners:
A. Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group - page 1
B. GP Chambers – page 7
C. Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust – page 11
D. South West London and St George’s NHS Mental Health Trust – page 12
E. Healthwatch Kingston – page 18
F. Your Healthcare – see Annex 1
G. Adult Social Care – Kingston Co-ordinated Care – see Annex 2

A. Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group
Overall commissioning arrangements for health care – eg community,
hospital and primary care – GPs, Dentists, Opticians, pharmacies; top
level budgets for these main area
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group is the organisation responsible for commissioning
(or planning, buying, and ensuring the quality of) healthcare services in Kingston including
hospital care, rehabilitation, urgent and emergency care, and most community health
services, including mental health and learning disabilities. We commission for the 204,510
people registered with our twenty-two GP practices, using an annual budget of about
£248million.

A2
The CCG does not commission dentists, optician or pharmacy – all of whom are
commissioned by NHS England.
Kingston CCG spent £248.436m in 2016/17. £126m was spent on hospital services for
the Kingston population, in local hospitals












£126m was spend on hospital services for the Kingston population, in local
hospitals and around the country.
£22m was spent on mental health services and care for people with learning
disabilities. This care is provided in hospitals and in the community by a range
of professionals
£18m related to continuing healthcare, for people with long-term conditions and
for older people
£21m was spent on community services. These services include community
and district nurses and other community healthcare professionals, as well as
services provided at Tolworth Hospital
£21m of expenditure related to prescribing i.e. the costs of drugs prescribed by
local GPs,
£25.6m was spent against GP primary care budgets that were delegated to the
CCG from NHS England in April 2016. A further £5m was invested in primary
care services in 2016/17.
£6m was spent on small scale local services, including integrated services as
part of the Better Care Fund
£4.2m of resources were spent on CCG running costs and management costs

Arrangement with Richmond CCG
From April 1st 2017 Kingston CCG began working much more closely with our colleagues
in Richmond CCG. Kingston and Richmond CCGs remain accountable to their own local
populations and retain their own governing bodies and membership, but there is now one
senior management structure across the two CCGs, producing economies of scale and a
more consistent approach to service for our patients.
Furthermore, from April 2017 Kingston and Richmond CCGs also began working as part of
the South West London Alliance, with one accountable officer across five CCGs,
Richmond and Kingston, Merton and Wandsworth this year (2017/18) and with Sutton
CCG in 2018/19. This will ensure a more co-ordinated and efficient approach to
commissioning in south west London.

Reporting lines
The governing body oversees the day to day operations of the CCG through the chief
officer and a senior executive management team; this includes the procurement of
management support and other matters. The governing body has established:





The audit committee
The finance committee
The integrated governance committee
The remuneration committee

A3
The audit committee is responsible for reviewing the establishment and maintenance of
an effective system of governance, risk management and internal control, across the
whole of the clinical commissioning group's activities that support the achievement of the
clinical outcomes.
The work of the audit committee dovetails with that of the integrated governance
committee in seeking assurance that robust systems, including clinical quality, are in
place. In particular, the committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of:




All risk and control related disclosure statements (in particular the governance
statement), together with any appropriate independent assurances, prior to
endorsement by the clinical commissioning group.
The underlying assurance processes that indicate the degree of achievement of
clinical commissioning group objectives, the effectiveness of the management of
principal risks and the appropriateness of the above disclosure statements.

The finance committee continuously assesses financial and non-financial risks relating to
the QIPP plans and ensure the CCG has in place measures and mitigation to manage risk.
It is accountable for overseeing a robust organisation-wide system of financial
management. The committee ensures that the finances of the CCG are scrutinised to
ensure budgets are set and managed in an appropriate and timely manner. It ensures that
the governing body is fully aware of any financial risks which may materialise throughout
the year. Another major role is to review the financial strategy of the governing body. It
works alongside the audit committee and the integrated governance committee to ensure
financial probity in the organisation. The committee has, on behalf of the governing body,
an overview of all aspects of finances (including capital spend and cash management),
which will involve work relating to commissioning of health services.
The integrated governance committee is accountable for controlling and overseeing a
robust organisation-wide system of board assurance. The committee ensures that the
CCG is fit for its purpose and operates within a strategic competency framework.
It has, on behalf of the governing body, an overview of the CCG’s work in all areas. This
includes ensuring the quality and safety of the services the organisation commissions. It is
responsible for ensuring an integrated approach to all areas of governance, including
corporate, financial and clinical, through specific strategies and programmes of work.
The remuneration committee comprises four members.

Sustainability and Transformation Plan and relationship with the Five
Year Forward View
South West London Five Year Forward Plan
Following publication of the NHS Five Year Forward View, each NHS region in England
was required to publish a Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for the next five
years. These plans are intended to meet the clinical, staffing and financial challenges

A4
facing the NHS by coming up with a long term plan to ensure that services are safe, high
quality and sustainable. Our STP – the South West London Five Year Forward Plan –
covers the boroughs of Croydon, Kingston, Merton, Richmond, Sutton and Wandsworth.
It is the product of unprecedented collaboration between all parts of the local NHS hospital consultants, doctors, nurses, therapists, hospitals, mental health trusts,
pharmacists and commissioners – working with our colleagues in local councils.
There are a number of challenges the NHS needs to address, including increased demand
for health services due to an ageing population, quality of care, getting the right staff and
the state of some of our buildings.
What does the STP propose?
The STP is not a detailed blueprint for the next five years. At this stage, it is a draft
document containing a number of ideas and proposals, which are at different stages of
development. Taken together, we think they will lead to a number of improvements for
patients.
These include:










It will be easier to see a GP. We are investing in primary care services. We
want to make more appointments available between 8am and 8pm and to free
up GP time by making better use of other clinicians such as nurses and
pharmacists. Our GPs are already working together in local federations and will
be able to play a bigger role in coordinating their patients’ care.
More care will be available in the community. We are setting up ‘locality
teams’ in each area to work together in supporting patients. These teams will be
made up of your local GPs, nurses, pharmacists, social care staff, mental health
and other health professionals, working closely with local hospitals. They will
support people to look after themselves and stay well.
It will be easier to get treatment in your local health centre, at a local clinic
or at home, as we will be putting more resources into local communities. You
will get better advice and support to look after yourself and your loved ones.
NHS and social care staff will work together to support you. We will be launching
an improved 111 telephone helpline to provide medical advice and guide you to
the right local service. We will make more use of smartphone apps, Skype calls
and telephone advice for those who need health advice but don’t need to visit
their GP.
We will support patients who have long-term conditions like diabetes,
dementia, asthma or a heart condition and their carers – helping them to
understand and monitor their condition and when and where they should seek
help. ‘Care navigators’ will increasingly support you to find your way around the
system and make sure you only have to provide the same information once. We
will run public health campaigns across south west London, helping people to
live healthier lives.
Your mental and physical health will be treated together. We know that
mental and physical health are closely linked but are too often treated

A5





separately. A key part of our plan is to join up mental and physical health
services. People with mental health problems can also expect to be helped
sooner, before their condition gets worse and they end up in crisis at A&E or
admitted to a mental health hospital when they do not need to be.
By reducing the need for so many people to go to hospital and developing
clinical networks between hospitals and other services, we will be able to deliver
high quality hospital care more quickly for those who need it.
Buildings where health services are delivered will be safer for patients and
suitable for 21st century healthcare.

As a first step, Local Transformation Boards in each area (Croydon, Sutton,
Merton/Wandsworth and Richmond/Kingston) are developing local clinical models for their
area - how many community hubs we need, what services we can provide in the
community and what each services each of the hospitals should offer?
This local work will identify those services that cut across the four sub-regions and need to
be considered at south west London level. Out of this, we will arrive at a model of care for
the SWL region which is based on each area’s needs, rather than trying to come up with a
south west London ‘top down’ solution.

Our performance – performance analysis
Accident & Emergency – Whilst the 95% target was not achieved, Kingston Hospital
achieved 90.1% against the national standard, and achieved the standard in April 2016.
Cancer – All cancer waiting time targets have been met.
Referral to treatment – The national 18 weeks waiting time target was met. In addition,
99.6% of people were seen within 6 weeks for a diagnostic test.
IAPT – Ensuring timely access to psychological services (IAPT) for those people with
anxiety and depression, achieving the 6 and 18 weeks targets for the whole of 2016/17.
The monthly friends and family test (FFT) surveys show excellent outcomes reported for
patients in inpatients, outpatients, community care, A&E and maternity services.
Improve quality - In addition, Kingston CCG has made improvements from the reported
position in 2015/16 in the following areas:



Proportion of admissions to acute mental health wards that are gate-kept by the
crisis resolution home treatment service (face to face contacts only)
The percentage of patients with COPD who have had a review, undertaken by a
healthcare professional.

Dementia diagnosis and mental health prevention by Kingston GPs


The proportion of people diagnosed with dementia is not at expected levels, despite
a great deal of work with clinical reviewers and practices – performance for the year
up to February 2017 was 63.5%. It is expected that the actions put in place at the
end of 2016/17 will increase the diagnosis rate to the required level of 66.7% within
2017/18.

A6


Supporting the IAPT service to increase and meeting the proportion of people
accessing treatment in line with the increased expectation within 2017/18, as well
as to increase the proportions of older people and BME communities accessing
IAPT services.

System Resilience - There has been a great deal of work within Kingston Hospital and
around the whole health and social care system to recover the A&E 95% target of arrival to
admission, transfer or discharge. This work is on-going, and recovery actions and work to
improve performance in 2017/18 and is being managed by the Kingston and Richmond
A&E Delivery Board. The A&E Delivery Board is also working to deliver the required
reduction in Delayed Transfers of Care locally.

Health screening
Kingston CCG gives the details of screening services and how they work on its website
under the Stay Healthy section (also re-produced below). Each page also links to the
national information on screening services: www.cancerscreening.nhs.uk
Bowel cancer screening
The NHS Bowel Cancer Screening Programme (BCSP) currently offers screening every
two years to men and women aged between 60 and 69 who are registered with a GP. As
of April 2010, the bowel cancer screening programme will also be offered to men and
women up to 75 years of age who are registered with a GP.
In Kingston we also encourage people over 74 years to access bowel cancer screening.
The aim of the programme is to cut bowel cancer deaths in this age group by 16%, by
spotting the disease at an early stage.
GPs are not directly involved in the delivery of the NHS Bowel Cancer Screening
Programme. Instead, when eligible patients are due to be screened they will be sent a
faecal occult blood test (FOBT) in the post which they can complete and return themselves
from home. GPs will be notified when their patients are invited for bowel cancer screening.
They will also receive a copy of the results letters sent to their patients.
Breast Cancer Screening
One in nine women will develop breast cancer at some time in their life. Breast cancer is
more common in women over 50. Breast screening does not prevent cancer but can help
to find small changes in the breast before there are any other signs or symptoms.
Breast screening reduces the risk of women dying from breast cancer and saves an
estimated 1,400 lives each year in this country.
All women between 50 and 70 years of age are eligible for a free breast screening test, or
mammogram. From 2012 the age at which women will be invited for breast cancer
screening will be extended to include women aged 47-49 and 70-73. Women over 70
years of age may request screening.
The NHS Breast Screening Programme invites eligible women who are registered with a
GP for breast screening every three years. When eligible women are due to be screened

A7
they will automatically be sent an invitation in the post to attend their local screening
centre.
Cervical Cancer Screening
All women between 25 and 64 years of age are eligible for a free cervical screening test.
The NHS Cervical Screening Programme now offers screening at different intervals: Every
three years for women aged 25-49 and every five years for women aged 50-65.
Around 900 women die of cervical cancer in England each year. However, cervical cancer
can often be prevented. The signs that it may develop can be spotted early on so it can be
stopped before it even gets started.
Cervical screening is not a test for diagnosing cervical cancer. It is a test to check the
health of the cervix, which is the lower part of the womb (often called the neck of the
womb). The purpose of the test is to identify changes in the cells before they become
cancerous, therefore preventing cancer from occurring.
Cancer Research UK scientists estimate that up to 4,500 lives will be saved each year in
England by cervical screening.
Women who fall in these age groups should be invited by their GP to attend the surgery for
their cervical screen, or smear test. If you have not been invited then please contact your
GP.

B.

Kingston General Practice Chambers Limited (KGPC)

1. Introduction
Kingston General Practice Chambers is a federation of all NHS General Practices (Primary
Care) within Kingston upon Thames. It was founded in 2008 as a limited company whose
shareholders are all 22 GP Practices within Kingston. The company is led by a Board of
Directors who are also GP Partners in their own General Practices within Kingston. Board
meetings are held monthly and shareholder (Members) meetings bi-monthly.
The main aims of KGPC are to:
i.

ii.

provide the patients of Kingston with access to a range of extended and enhanced
clinical services on an equitable basis, regardless of the range of services their own
particular surgery is able to offer.
assist all GP practices within Kingston to provide high quality service, by supporting
and co-ordinating development programmes.

(Information below in italics addresses specific issues raised in the brief for this paper)
2. Clinical Services
KGPC has been delivering services successfully since 2010, and there are currently three
major service lines:

A8
i.
ii.
iii.

Kingston Extended Primary Care Service
Urgent Care
Specialty Services

For clarity KGPC has responsibility for provision of the services listed above under
contract to the CCG. KGPC is NOT responsible for the provision of general medical
services within individual GP Practices. This is the responsibility of senior partners within
each Practice for which they are accountable to NHS England via the CCG.
i.

Kingston Extended Primary Care Service (commissioned by the CCG)

Staffed by Kingston GPs, and, via a subcontract with “Your Healthcare” Advanced Nurse
Practitioners, this service provides extended-hours access to primary care appointments at
three sites within Kingston. These are:




Surbiton Health Centre
Merritt Health Centre
Kingston Health Centre

Services can be accessed through the patient’s own GP surgery for week day evenings up
to 8pm and via the weekend appointment phone line (see Stay Well in Kingston leaflet) for
Saturday and Sunday appointments between 8am and 8pm at Surbiton and 8am - 2pm at
the Merritt Centre. Kingston Health Centre opens from 8am to 8pm on Saturday and 8am 2pm on Sunday. After a patient attends one of these clinics details of the consultation are
sent immediately to the patient’s own GP to ensure continuity of care. Quality and safety of
the service is paramount and this is overseen by a clinical lead for the service.
Changing demand on GP services will see all Practices within Kingston extending their
services into Saturday working from October onwards. The KGPC extended primary care
service will continue to provide extra capacity for those wishing to be seen in the evenings
and at weekends.
ii.

Urgent Care (commissioned by Kingston Hospital)

This service provides a GP in the A&E department at Kingston Hospital from 9am -11pm,
seven days a week. This provision will become part of a new Urgent Care Service which
we are jointly developing with Kingston Hospital colleagues which will be fully on-stream
later in the year.
iii.

GPs with Specialist Interest services – “GPwSI” (commissioned by CCG)

Member Practices of KGPC have a wealth of expert clinical knowledge which has enabled
the company to provide community based services and gives the patient the opportunity to
be seen locally by highly qualified GPs for the following specialties:

A9






Diabetes including insulin Initiation hosted at Kingston Health Centre and the Merritt
Centre
Dermatology including minor surgery hosted at Surbiton Health Centre
Neurology hosted at Surbiton Health Centre
Urology and Vasectomy hosted at the Merritt Centre and Surbiton Health Centre
Dementia Support Service hosted at Surbiton Health Centre.

The services are hosted by member practices within Kingston and include rooms,
administrative cover and general assistance when the sessions are running. Staff
providing the service, and those performing direct patient care, are validated by KGPC
directors and by the Kingston Hospital clinical governance leads as suitably qualified,
skilled and indemnified. For most of the services clinical governance leadership,
continuing education and clinical supervision is provided by consultants from Kingston
Hospital in line with clinical governance requirements. Regular meetings are held with
both the service clinical staff, service Directors and the appointed practice manager to
deal with the routine running and efficiency of the service and to support changes required
in response to both clinical and management issues. Services provide pathology services
and discharge summaries electronically to the patient’s GP.
The CCG is looking to expand the GPwSI service to include musculoskeletal services such
as physiotherapy and pain management.
3. Broader support services to all GP Practices
The following support to Kingston General Practices are provided either through
successful bidding for central funds (grants) or reinvestment.
i.

Education and Training (Grant)

Chambers hosts the Kingston CEPN (Community Education Providers Network) under a
contract with Health Education England. One part of the role is to manage funding and
provision of non-medical training within primary care. This includes nurses, health
professional, managers and administration staff. KGPC administers this grant which
covers both pre and post registration training. All practices can bid for courses and are
also invited to attend courses made available either within Kingston or elsewhere in South
West London. This year Kingston will be hosting a very important Primary Care Nursing
Conference in December for all of South West London. Pre-registration placements for
Student Nurses interested in becoming Primary Care Nurses are available in some of the
Kingston Practices. Succession management will be an important focus for Kingston over
the next few years as the workforce plan demonstrates that many of Kingston’s primary
care nurses are near retirement. The CEPN also links workforce development between
primary care and other out-of-hospital services, involving in particular Your Healthcare,
community pharmacists and adult social care.
ii.

Phone Improvement (ETTF Grant)

A10
NHS England’s Estates and Technology Transformation Fund (ETTF) is a multi-million
pound investment (revenue and capital funding) in general practice facilities and
technology across England (between 2015/16 and 2019/20).
The grant provided to KGPC is being used to replace current telecoms hardware and
systems with one that has improved call handling capability at peak times and easier
management of recorded patient information. The cost of phone calls (particularly to
mobiles) has risen steeply so many of the practices are feeling the impact and this gives
them an opportunity to contain costs and improve overall efficiency.
iii.

EMIS (ETTF and reinvestment)

EMIS is a Primary Care administration system which all Kingston practices now use to
provide uniformity and ease of access. All speciality services (GPwSI) are also available
to GPs on the EMIS system. The next stage is to introduce Practices to the systems audit
tool and resource files including referral protocols and documentation which will assist in
both improving clinical services and improved consistency. ensuring ongoing financial
viability.
Sharing Information: Information can be shared confidentially between the Practices, the
GPwSI services and the Extended Hours Service via EMIS.
(KGPC is also part of the system-wide Kingston Care Record programme through which a
confidential electronic record of both health and in time social care information can be
shared between medical, nursing and social work staff across organisations in Kingston to
support patient care.)
iv.

Co-ordinated care (reinvestment)

After the publication of the STP last year and with increasing pressures on A&E services,
hospital beds and adult social care services and budgets, there is renewed emphasis on
the need for health and care providers to work together to provide new ways of working in
people’s homes and local communities. There are several initiatives around the
integration of care provision in which KGPC is involved, but as a small organisation with
limited resources it is becoming increasingly difficult to be fully involved in everything.
Below are some of the joint-working initiatives in which KGPC is involved, with KGPC
Board GPs and general manager representing Kingston’s primary care providers:


Kingston Co-ordinated Care – clinical and managerial participation for the past 2
years to ensure primary care is at the heart of future arrangements and provide
support for the primary care development parts of the work e.g. currently the
establishment of more consistent and comprehensive multidisciplinary team
working in all practices, involving professionals from other local organisations on a
regular basis. Practices use a risk stratification tool to highlight those patients who
are at risk of unplanned use of services (e.g. A&E attendance / admission)

A11








Local Transformation Board – the commissioner led programme to develop and
implement the Kingston and Richmond components of the SW London STP
Integrated Provider Delivery Group – this group is enabling coordinated provider
action to deliver the STP requirements locally
SW London GP Federations – a regular group, semi-formally constituted, pursuing
opportunities across the SW London area for all GP Federations, linking into the
SW London STP process. Examples of current workstreams include hub working
for long term conditions and specialist outreach, intermediate care provision, social
prescribing.
Accountable Care Systems – recently initiated multi-agency work which may offer
an overarching approach for joint working across and between commissioners and
providers.
At Chambers bi-monthly Members Meeting with all practices feed-back is given on
the above initiatives, specifically outlining the impact on primary care provision and
changes, and seeking a steer from our members which we can feed back in to the
processes.

4. Future plans
Over the last ten years KGPC has grown from being a small independent provider to being
one of the key players within the Borough in healthcare provision. During that time we
have demonstrated the ability to respond rapidly e.g. in providing evening and weekend
primary care services, and we have continued to demonstrate the capability to provide
quality, cost effective enhanced services. We are aiming to continue to grow as we are
increasingly recognised as the provider of choice for extended, enhanced and urgent GP
services. We also expect an increasing role as we support, reinforce and develop the
position of general practice as the core building block for an increasing range of jointlyprovided services. There is a continuing challenge for us as a comparatively small
organisation to maintain active participation in the plethora of initiatives being pursued
locally, but we will continue to do our best with limited resources.

C.

Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Overview
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a single site, medium sized Hospital, located
within Kingston-Upon-Thames in South West London. The Trust provides services to
approximately 350,000 people locally on behalf of its main commissioners, including
Kingston, Richmond, Wandsworth, Merton and Sutton Clinical Commissioning Groups
(CCGs) in South West London and Surrey Downs CCG (East Elmbridge locality) in Surrey.
The Trust provides a range of services to its catchment area, including:





A full Emergency service
Elective and Emergency services in Surgery and Medicine
Women’s and Children’s services
Therapies, Diagnostics and Pharmacy services

A12

The Trust has some 520 beds and directly employs around 2,900 whole time equivalent
staff, with another 300 staff employed by contractors working on behalf of the Trust, and
approximately 600 volunteers. Last year the Trust saw over 113,437 patients in A&E,
undertook 388,747 outpatient appointments and cared for 71,898 admitted patients (this
included Maternity admissions). The Trust’s maternity unit delivered 5,800 babies.
As well as delivering services from the main hospital base on Galsworthy Road, the Trust
delivers ambulatory services at a range of community locations in partnership with GPs
and community providers. The Trust’s clinicians provide and/or support care in outpatient
and day surgery facilities at a number of community locations.
The Trust has strong links with tertiary and specialist hospitals, particularly St George’s
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and The Royal Marsden Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust who jointly provide cancer services on the Kingston Hospital site in the
Sir William Rous Unit. The Trust has close links with Kingston University and St George's
Medical School, London Southbank University, and jointly runs the Elective Orthopaedic
Centre at Epsom Hospital in partnership with St George’s University Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust, Croydon Health Services NHS Trust and Epsom and St Helier
University Hospitals.
The Trust operates in a complex external environment and is actively involved across a
range of strategic collaborations. The Trust is a member of the Local Transformation
Board, working collaboratively with partners to deliver the SW London Sustainability and
Transformation Plan. Alongside this the Trust is working closely with health and social
care partners locally in Kingston, and Richmond to deliver the sub-regional Sustainability
and Transformation Plan, focusing on the proactive and preventative care agenda to
support the avoidance of hospital attendances and admissions. The Trust is also a
member of the West London Cancer Vanguard, working towards forming an Accountable
Clinical Network for Cancer.
NHS Trust Reporting
As an NHS Foundation Trust, Kingston Hospital is accountable to its local communities
through their members and governors, their commissioners through contracts, Parliament,
the Care Quality Commission and NHS Improvement.
Current challenges
The challenges facing the Trust are set against a context of financial constraint across the
NHS provider sector, a background of increasing demand for access to services and plans
to deliver the implementation of the national Five Year Forward View.
In common with many NHS Providers in London and the South the Trust experiences
considerable challenge in attracting and retaining people in some key staff groups with a
consequent reliance on bank and agency staff to ensure that safe staffing levels are
consistently provided across all areas of patient care. The Trusts approach to tackling the
workforce challenges is underpinned by a revised Workforce Strategy with a focus on
developing the Trust as an Employer of Choice in the local health economy, which

A13
includes a programme of strategic recruitment, implementing an integrated learning,
development and leadership programme and a range of health and wellbeing initiatives.
The Trust scored in the top 20% of all acute Trusts for 13 key areas in the 2016 National
Staff Survey and has seen significant improvements and positive results in 55 areas,
demonstrating the positive impact the Workforce Strategy is already having. One of the
standout findings of the survey was the high percentage of staff recommending the
organisation as a good place to work or receive treatment.
As a Trust the impact of Brexit on staff is a concern, given that 14% of staff are from the
European Community. The Trust has established a Brexit Support Group for staff
concerned about what it may mean for them. The group meets regularly and is in dialogue
with MPs ensuring the views and concerns of staff are known and can be taken into
consideration as part of the negotiations.
From an operational perspective the challenge remains to consistently meet the 4 hour
A&E access standard. The Trust through the A&E Delivery Board is working
collaboratively with commissioners and provider partners in primary and community care
and social care to implement a range of new initiatives to support the achievement of this
target, including Kingston and Richmond both running GP Hubs offering out of hours GP
appointments weekdays and weekends.
CQC
The Trust was inspected by the CQC in January 2016, and was rated ‘Requires
Improvement’ overall. The hospital was rated as ‘Good’ for Caring and End of Life Care
was rated as ‘Outstanding’ for Caring. Five of the eight services inspected received an
overall rating of ‘Good’. The CQC identified actions the Trust must take to improve quality
and action plans are in place to address the ‘must do’ and ‘should do’ actions. The Trust
will complete a process of self-assessment during 2017 to provide assurance that actions
are embedded and services are compliant with standards.
The Kingston Health Overview Panel has previously received a report on the results of the
CQC inspection and actions plan to address areas for improvement.

D.

South West London and St George’s NHS Mental Health
Trust

Overview
1.

We are the leading provider of mental health services across south west London
serving 1.1 million people in the boroughs of Kingston, Merton, Richmond, Sutton
and Wandsworth. We are also a centre of excellence for many of our national
mental health services.

2.

The Trust has specialist forensic, CAMHS, working age adult, older adult wards,
deaf and OCD wards. We provide community and outpatient services in each of the

A14
boroughs we serve and provide many national services such as those for people
with eating disorders and OCD as well as national deaf services.

Estates Modernisation
3.

The Estate Modernisation Programme (EMP) is an exciting project which will
revolutionise the way mental health services are delivered in south west London for
generations to come and will also provide new facilities for our local community.

4.

The programme will be entirely self-funded through selling surplus land no longer
needed for our services. We will be investing £160 million which will deliver:





Two new campuses with 1st class in-patient facilities at Springfield and
Tolworth
A 32 acre public park
Extensive community healthcare
Brand new homes in Tooting
Over £5 million for new transport facilities

Current status of the programme
5.

In order to ensure the programme is completed as soon as possible the entire
estate will be developed by one ‘Master Developer’. The Trust has a three stage
process to ensure the right development partner is selected to deliver the whole of
the programme. This involved selecting a ‘long list’ of development partners,
evaluating their bids, before agreeing a set of three to move onto the ‘short list’
stage.

6.

The Trust recently announced the short list of preferred development partners to
move onto the next stage of the selection process. These partners are:


Macquarie Corporate Holdings Pty Ltd & Kier Construction Ltd



Notting Hill Housing Trust & MACE Ltd



STEP (Kajima Partnerships and Sir Robert McAlpine Capital Ventures Ltd

7.

The final stage will be to continue dialogue with the three development partners
listed above before choosing the preferred partner in Autumn 2017. The selection of
the preferred development partner is subject to approval by our Finance &
Investment Committee and our Trust Board.

8.

Following this we will write a Full Business Case which is presented to NHS
Improvement, the Department of Health and the Treasury for approval.

Tolworth Hospital
9.

Building work is anticipated to begin at our Tolworth Hospital site in 2020. The site
will deliver the following services:
3 working age adult wards

A15
2 older adult wards
1 OCD/BDD specialist ward
2 specialist CAMHS wards (Deaf & ED)
1 CAMHS acute ward
1 CAMHS psychiatric intensive care unit
10.

The estates modernisation programme has been developed around increasing
inpatient standards to provide:






Access to outside space
Separate accommodation for men and women with appropriate standards of
dignity
A smaller number of beds in each ward
At least 3 mental health wards on each site to ensure cross cover for
emergencies
Staff with the ability to monitor and observe patients by ‘line of sight’ and to
support appropriate levels of staff cover

Service Line Management
11.

The Trust has now moved into a new service line management (SLM) structure.
The new structure began on Monday 3 April.

12.

Prior to moving into SLM the Trust worked with a number of other mental health
trusts across the country and we believe this new management will universally
improve the quality of care our patients receive. The structure, which moves the
organisation from a borough focus, to a service line focus, will enable our clinicians
to take the lead on service developments and drive improvements in patient care.
Services will therefore be delivered in a consistent way which benefit our patients
and help us to be more effective and efficient.

13.

The principle objectives we aim to deliver through SLM are:
1)

Leadership by clinicians: driving improvement to patient care

2)

Quality-focused healthcare: delivering better services for every patient

3)

Greater efficiency and productivity: guaranteeing good value for money

4)
Devolved decision-making: judgements made by our best health
professionals
14.

The organisation is now managed by a new senior leadership team in five services
lines which are named:





Acute and Urgent Care
Cognition and Mental Health in Ageing
Community
Forensic, Specialist and National

A16


Child and Adolescent Mental Health

15.

The Trust is committed to ensuring strong links are still maintained at a borough
level and have therefore been working with external stakeholders to ensure they are
aware of their new links.

16.

Our Community Directorate will act as a key contact for our boroughs and includes
specific borough aligned staff including our Associate Clinical Director and our
Clinical Manager for Kingston and Richmond.

17.

Key contacts for Kingston

Executive Lead, Interim Medical Director – Dr Mark Potter
mark.potter@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Clinical Director, Community Directorate – Dr Stuart Adams
stuart.adams@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Associate Clinical Director for Kingston – Dr Martin Humphrey
martin.humphrey@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Head of Service Delivery, Community Directorate – Gillian Moore
Gillian.moore@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Clinical Manager for Kingston and Richmond – Richard Dalton
richard.dalton@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

CQC inspection
18.

The Trust received a full Chief Inspector of Hospitals (CIH) inspection in March
2016. A summary chronology of the inspection and production of the action plans
are set out below:
14 October 2015

Trust notified of inspection

14-18 March 2016

Inspection week

4 May 2016

High level feedback received

19 May 2016

Draft reports received for factual
accuracy checking

3 June 2016

Trust submitted factual accuracy
corrections

16 June 2016

Reports published

7 July 2016

Quality improvement plan presented to
Trust Board for approval

25 July 2016

Quality Improvement plan sent to CQC

A17
27 July 2016

Quality Summit

27/28 September 2016

Focused re-inspection

17 November 2016

Results of re-inspection draft reports
issued to Trust for factual accuracy.
Resulted in re-rating of the organisation
to ‘Good’.

30th November 2016

Revised CQC reports published

19.

Returning to carry out a follow up inspection in September, the Inspectors said that
they were impressed by the improvements that were evident in the Trust’s
supervision, administrative and medicines management processes and they were
now confident that eight out of the ten core services were rated as ‘Good’ and the
Trust now rates as ‘Good’ overall for well led, caring, effective and responsive.

20.

The report highlights several areas of good practice, including:







The caring staff across all services: 'staff were enthusiastic, passionate and
demonstrated a clear commitment to their work. Care was delivered by hardworking, caring and compassionate staff'.
Positive developments made in acute inpatient services, community learning
disability services, child adolescent and mental health services.
‘Young people and their families were treated as partners in their care' and
stated that 'staff treated young people and their families with kindness, dignity
and respect'
The Trust's record of challenging stigma and discrimination saying that 'excellent
work is taking place with local communities to break down the stigma associated
with mental illness' and make services more accessible.

Challenges and improvements
Improvements at Lilacs ward
21.

Lilacs ward is a 23-bed mixed gender, adult acute mental health ward. It provides
assessment and treatment for individuals experiencing mental health conditions
such as schizophrenia, depression, anxiety. It serves Kingston borough, and is
under the Acute Service Line. The service aims to provide assessments of patients
mental health needs and develop a plan of the care and support they will receive.
Patients are also allocated one named person whilst on the ward, who coordinates
their care and support. Following a lack of positive feedback regarding the ward and
several complaints the Trust has sought to make improvements. A substantive
consultant is now in post and team morale is improving. The Trust is also assessing
how to involve carers more in discharge planning from the ward.

Reducing delayed transfers of care

A18
22.

A ‘delayed transfer of care’ occurs when an adult inpatient in hospital (children are
excluded from this definition) is ready to go home or move to a less acute stage of
care but is prevented from doing so. Delayed transfers of care are a problem for the
NHS as they reduce the number of beds available to other patients who need them,
as well as causing unnecessarily long stays in hospital for patients. The Trust is
seeking to ensure a more consistent Delayed Transfer of Care process and has set
itself a target of 2.5%. In order to overcome this the Trust is currently in negotiations
to establish a Hospital Discharge Team who will be responsible for ensuring a
smooth transition from inpatient care back to community care.

Kingston Coordinated care
23.

The Kingston Coordinated Care programme is a system wide response to this
context, led by the Council and the CCG and supported by statutory, voluntary and
community providers of services. The Trust’s Cognition and Mental Health in
Ageing Service Line are working to align KCC with the overall Mental Health
programme including the dementia strategy.

E.

Healthwatch Kingston

24.

Underpinned by its statutory basis, Healthwatch Kingston continues to provide a
critical friend role to health and social care commissioners and providers alike.
Following the Council’s recent re-tendering process the existing organisation and
board will provide ongoing continuity and build on its substantial experience and
reputation of delivering a service that will meet the needs of consumers of health
and social care and hopefully represent their interests well. With a team of 2.8 FTE
staff, Healthwatch will continue to have an active presence in a wide range of
forums across Kingston, in particular facilitating public consultation and dialogue
about key policy and practice developments such as Choosing Wisely and
Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STP).

25.

Of note in 2016/17 have been four key achievements:







The completion of a major survey of children and young people across
Richmond and Kingston to gather their views about children’s mental health
services and what could be improved for submission to commissioners
The co-production of the new Kingston Mental Health Strategy where
Healthwatch played a pivotal role in enabling a wide range of stakeholders to put
forward their ideas and from this construct a forward thinking and service user
focussed strategy
The completion of a home care consumer survey to help commissioners shape
this element of the new model of adult social care
A survey of outpatient appointment communications at Kingston Hospital in
response to consumer concerns identified by Healthwatch, with observations
about how practice can be improved delivered to the hospital for their
consideration

A19
26.

Healthwatch’s key methodologies remain the Enter and View process, on line and
face to face interview surveys, grass roots meetings with particular groups
especially those who feel marginalised, and arranging an eclectic series of events
that enable health and social care personnel to engage with a wide range of
consumers to learn about their issues and concerns in a changing landscape. We
actively involve volunteers in our work, without whom, we could not deliver our
agenda.

27.

In 2017/18 our priorities will relate to embedding the Mental Health Strategy,
monitoring Adult Social Care policy and practice developments, refreshing our
pattern of engagement with children and young people, and facilitating constructive
conversations about the local impact of national policy developments such as
Choosing Wisely and the STP programme.

F.

Your Healthcare – see Annex 1

G.

Adult Social Care – Kingston Continuing Care – see Annex 2

Useful Links:
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group - http://www.kingstonccg.nhs.uk/
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - https://www.kingstonhospital.nhs.uk/
South West London and St George’s Mental Health Trust - http://www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk/
Your Healthcare - http://www.yourhealthcare.org/
Adult Social Care (RBK) - https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200181/adult_social_care
Public Health (RBK) - https://www.kingston.gov.uk/health_and_wellbeing
Healthwatch Kingston - http://www.healthwatchkingstonuponthames.org.uk

A20

Your Healthcare CIC
Responding to the government’s Transforming Community Services (2008),
Your Healthcare CIC (YH) was the first London NHS organisation to be
established as a social enterprise (a ‘mutual’) in 2010. Since then, we have
continued to provide and invest in a wide range of community based health
and social care services for local people, being led by what they tell us is
most needed, and where.
A Community Interest Company (CIC) is a special type of limited company,
introduced by the government in 2005 under the Companies (Audit,
Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004. CICs are designed for
social enterprises that want to use their profits and assets to benefit the
community. CICs have an ‘asset lock’ so that the company’s assets will only
be used for its social objectives, and setting limits to the money it can pay to
shareholders. The choice of mutualism and the benefits of being a public
sector health provider remain apparent to YH, we utilise the model to help
deliver better social return on our commissioner’s public purse investment and
furthermore, and help support efficiency gains within the economy.
YH runs a broad and complex portfolio of community health and social care
services for l the local population. Our commissioners include but are not
limited to: NHS Kingston CCG, Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK)Adult Social
Care, Kingston Public Health, NHS England, NHS Richmond CCG and the
Albion Group CIC.
YH worked closely in 2015 with the Cabinet Office ‘Mutuals in Health
Programme’ and the three University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust (UHL)
sites and as part of the Albion Group CIC YH used the strength of this ongoing
partnership in this £500m opportunity, to explore the mutual model as a
vehicle for better staff engagement with the 12,000 staff and to improve
outcomes for the service users in this acute sector. YH has also with our Albion
partnerships, all of whom are CICs, really used our mutual status to take
advantage of various wider market opportunities, including developing and
setting up various health services within China. This work continues, and in
fact our Dementia Specialist Nurse has just returned from Shanghai where
Albion partners will provide a dementia service.
Importantly YH places over 97% of its resource within our frontline services so
that budget is effectively dedicated to safe high quality service delivery, and
page 1 of 10

A21

corporate and back office support kept as lean as possible to ensure our
public funds are used to best effect for local people. Our services operate as
Independently Lead Teams (ILTs) and thus much unnecessary bureaucracy is
removed, and within a strong and robust governance framework; assurance
is maintained by the services and the Corporate Support Team. Our Family
Tree promotes the continued development of and support to the services’
ILTs and their autonomy. This drives up quality, reduces duplication and
supports the contention that staff who are free to act to support the needs of
local people at the point of delivery, think more flexibly and creatively
beyond the boundaries of their own service. YH adopts an integrated and
collaborative approach to how our services operate, both internally and with
local partners, which enables our staff to provide seamless and effective care
to local people within the budgets provided. This approach is absolutely
central for the delivery of Kingston Co-ordinated Care (KCC):

page 2 of 10

A22

Coupled with our financial solvency, our positive staff surveys results also
evidence YH’s continued success as an independent provider using the
‘mutualism’ vehicle to deliver public services. Interestingly, our staff
engagement benchmarks at the same levels as organisations such as John
Lewis. In 2017 YH achieved 87% engagement (national norm =77%).
Importantly YH recognise staff engagement as not just a metric.
Organisations such as ours with good, ongoing and consistent staff
engagement also benefit from tangible business rewards such as:
Higher productivity - engaged staff have an 18% higher productivity, realise
twice the net profit and enable 2½x greater revenue growth
page 3 of 10

A23

Greater creativity - engaged employees are 20 times more likely to bring
creative ideas to their job
Lower staff turnover- higher levels of engagement show up to 40% lower staff
turnover
Fewer accidents - good staff engagement leads to 63% fewer work related
accidents
Healthier workplace - Good staff engagement reduces the sick days per
annum from >10 to <2
Higher customer advocacy - engaged staff have a 12% higher customer
advocacy rate.

YH is proud to be a financially solvent independent social
enterprise provider, with:




excellent staff engagement
More than 97% of resource operating autonomously in the
frontline within independently led teams
robust governance and assurance process
This strength result in the provision of high quality and safe
publicly funded services, which local people deserve.

page 4 of 10

A24

Details of community services including district nursing
Below is an overview of the services YH delivers, locally:


Integrated Services – Kingston @ Home incl:
- Reablement services
- Specialist Community Outreach
- Amy Woodgate Residential and Day Care for
older people with dementia
- Day Care Services
- Shared Lives Placement Schemes

RBK Adult Social Care



District Nursing (incl. sub-contracted Marie Curie &
Princess Alice Hospice services)

NHS Kingston CCG



Community Matron

NHS Kingston CCG



Twilight Nursing

NHS Kingston CCG



Rapid Response Team (acute community response team
to prevent avoidable transfer to A&E)

NHS Kingston CCG



IMPACT Team (in-reach support to care homes)

NHS Kingston CCG



Cedars Unit – community inpatient rehabilitation (incl.
Stroke)

NHS Kingston CCG



Wesley Lodge – Residential Care Home for Adults with
Learning Disabilities and Complex needs

NHS Kingston and
Richmond CCGs,
London Borough of
Richmond and Surrey
County Council



Physiotherapy (community & inpatient)

NHS Kingston CCG



Occupational Therapy (community & inpatient)

NHS Kingston CCG



Community Neuro Rehab Team (incl. the Stroke Service)

NHS Kingston CCG



Tissue Viability & GP Complex Leg Ulcer Service

NHS Kingston CCG



Leg Ulcer Service

NHS Kingston CCG



MSK Physiotherapy

NHS Kingston CCG



Podiatry

NHS Kingston CCG
page 5 of 10

A25



Diabetes Patient Education Services – Desmond &
Walking Away

NHS Kingston CCG



Falls service

NHS Kingston CCG



Respiratory Service (incl. Pulmonary Rehabilitation)

NHS Kingston CCG



Cardiac Rehabilitation

NHS Kingston CCG



Adult and Child Continence Services

NHS Kingston CCG



Speech and Language Therapies – Adult

NHS Kingston CCG



Assessment and Diagnostic Clinic for Adult Attention
Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD)

NHS Kingston CCG

Specialist Learning Disability Healthcare Services
including Specialist Psychology Services

NHS Kingston and
Richmond CCGs



Funded Nursing/Continuing Healthcare CHC
Assessments

NHS Kingston CCG



Speech and Language Therapies – Children

NHS Kingston CCG



0-19 Health Services (incl. school health and health
visiting)

Kingston Public Health



Sexual Health (CaSH, KU19 and SRE/Outreach)

Kingston Public Health



Provisions underpinning core contract include:
 Support for GPwSI Services @ SHC
 Safeguarding (lead nurse & administrator)
 Vulnerable Children (looked after children’s post)
 Infection and Prevention Control Specialist Nurse
 Community Equipment
 NHS Kingston CCG - IT Support Services
 All Kingston GPs – IT Support Services
 Kingston Care Record Service Provider



Care Record Provision Services

Achieving for Children



Sutton Integrated Digital Care Record

Sutton CCG and
Council



South West London Child Health Information Systems
(CHIS)

NHS England



London-wide CHIS Shared Record IT Platform

NHS England




page 6 of 10

A26



IT Support Services

Medway Community
Healthcare CIC

Reporting lines
YH is an independent provider and operates a robust organisational
governance framework (see diagram on next page) to support our
assurance processes. Our Managing Director is the YH Accountable Officer.
YH is registered with and regulated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
We provide assurance to all our commissioners through regular reporting and
performance meetings, and this is tailored to meet our wide portfolio of
commissioners and associated contractual responsibilities

page 7 of 10

A27
page 8 of 10

A28

How service provision can be expanded as part of the STP approach for less
care in hospital and more in the community
YH has invested in the modelling of new ways of working, to respond to local
and national pressures. In 2015 YH was selected by the Kingston Design Team
made up of representative from all the local care health and social care
providers, to be their system leader to see their work come to fruition. The
Design Team work evidenced that by working collaboratively and without
boundaries, care can be effectively and efficiently delivered locally. Kingston
Co-ordinated Care (KCC) is the vehicle to deliver these new ways of
delivering care.
KCC is recognised by commissioners as also delivering the change required
within the community, to support STP outcomes related to community
services. YH led the work with our Provider Alliance partners (RBK, Kingston
Hospital, SWL& St Georges Mental Health, Chambers GPs, and Staywell), on
our soft market test submission to Kingston CCG and RBK in September 2016.
The collaborative Alliance submission informed the commissioners’ decision
to work with their current providers, and not progress further a formal
procurement acknowledging that this would have destabilised the KCC work
already underway.
YH has funded Attain to support the programme management of KCC
delivery. Key work streams have already gone live as a result of the work
undertaken over the last two years. Examples of this are:



YH in-reach into Kingston Hospital, underway for the past two years, to
facilitate early supportive discharge
recent commencement of locality working to discuss within MDTs, those
local people at and who are not well supported within the current service
models; and further integration of health and social care to support
people in their own homes.

Brief mention of CQC inspection
The CQC undertook a Provider Inspection 15th - 17th November 2016. The final
reports were published online 9th June 2017 with an overall provider rating of
GOOD.
Full details can be found at http://www.cqc.org,.uk/.
page 9 of 10

A29

Current challenges and how these are being approached
One of the most significant determinants of good health and social care
outcomes is recognised as being the ability we have as local providers to
really understand the issues facing local people and the right level of support
they need and deserve. YH has been instrumental in developing the Kingston
Care Record (KCR), which is a key tool for KCC. Local Providers upload daily
key case information onto the KCR to enable key information to be accessed
by those providing the care. Some providers such as YH and primary care are
already uploading to KCR, with data feeds from others such as adult social
care and Kingston Hospital to follow. This instrument is also provided to Sutton
as their Sutton Integrated Digital Care Record (SIDCR), with the potential for
even wider rollout across other localities.
YH is also working with other agencies to ensure that the use of precious local
health estate will be cost effective and fit for future requirements. This
includes consideration on future community bed based care, the
development of a local community hub, and even the potential for key
worker housing sites. As with other public sector providers, YH understands
that living in South West London can often be prohibitively expensive, and
therefore YH is keen to consider with other partners any opportunities for the
development of key worker housing to ensure that staff remain a local and
sustainable workforce in the longer-term. With the recognised national
shortages of qualified staff, the option of key worker housing will act as an
incentive for potential candidates to apply for work at YH.

page 10 of 10

A30

Annex 2
Kingston Coordinated Care - Progress Report
Executive Head of Adult Care and Managing Director for Kingston and Richmond
Local Delivery Unit
Purpose
To inform the Board about the Kingston Coordinated Care (KCC) Programme.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Partnerships and the Chair of the
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group
For Information
What is the Kingston Coordinated Care programme about?
Kingston Coordinated Care is all about health and social care services working
together for the benefit of residents.
The Kingston Coordinated Care Programme was set up in response to what local
people said they needed and wanted from local health and social care.
When asked about what they needed to stay healthy, active and independent in the
face of everyday challenges, people said they wanted to be: socially connected and
part of their community; mentally active with a positive attitude to life, and; physically
active with practical support available if and when they needed it.
When asked about their experience of using local health and social care services
and what they wanted from them, people said they wanted to: be better understood
and listened to; have more choice and control over their services; have easier
access to more coordinated services, and; have consistent quality across services.
Kingston Coordinated Care also responds to a number of Government policies as
well as challenges facing both Local Authorities and the Health sector including:
●
the Government agenda for joined up care (NHS/Local Authority/Public
Health)
●
NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STP)
●
Diminishing resources and increasing demand
●
Changing demographics and people’s expectations
The Kingston Coordinated Care programme objectives are:
- to ensure people stay independent, healthy and well for longer with good
community support so they can enjoy their lives to the full, and;
- to ensure people have easy access to top quality, person-centred coordinated
health and social care support when they need it.
The programme comprises the following interconnected projects: Home Care

A31

Transformation, New Model of Care, Collaborative Commissioning, Active &
Supportive Communities and Kingston Care Record (KCR).
The New Model of Care project is delivering an integrated single point of access
(SPA) to ensure everyone gets high quality information and advice and can be
supported to access support already in the community. It will also be setting up an
infrastructure that will promote self-support, enabling people to self-assess and find
the information they need themselves.
The project will also create 4 locality teams across Kingston made up staff from the
different providers. The four areas are New Malden, Chessington, Kingston,
Surbiton. The locality teams will build on existing community based health and social
care infrastructure where integrated ‘locality teams’ will bring together; social care,
mental health, community health, secondary care, primary care, voluntary sector and
home care.
These staff will work alongside GP practices forming multi-disciplinary teams
(MDTs). The New Model of Care will focus on ensuring that we better understand
how the well-being of a person is impacted by their medical conditions or social care
needs and seek to address that, rather than focus on just treating the need /
condition. This is called taking an asset based approach, building on what is working
well for a person, rather than focusing on everything that is not working so well.
Working this way will help a person take back control of their lives and in time
support less use of GP appointments and attendance at A&E.

The first pilot of the New Model of Care will be implemented in New Malden.

A32

The Home Care Transformation project is looking at adopt an innovative approach
that will see the traditional home care function integrated as a core element of the
New Model of Care. This will mean home care will be part of the locality team
structure. The Council is looking to develop ‘well-being teams’. Well-being teams are
small groups of semi-autonomous care workers (typically 10-12 staff) whose role is
not just to provide care and support but to help people connect with the support
available in the community. Teams will be clustered around the GP practices areas
that will make up the MDT way of working the locality model is developing.

New ICT solutions will support people who remain in their own home including a
home care ‘app’.
The Collaborative Commissioning project sees RBK and Kingston CCG working
together to deliver collaborative approaches to commissioning. There is a particular
focus on Mental Health, Children, Learning Disability and Kingston Coordinated Care
where there is a natural alignment of aims especially around the delivery of the STP
and demand management.
Working in close partnership with the voluntary and community sector, the Active
and Supportive Communities project has promoted the benefits of ‘social
prescribing’. This encourages health and social care practitioners to refer people to a
range of local, non-clinical services often provided by the community and voluntary
and sector. The project has also helped to mobilise a network of local voluntary and
community sector partners who are keen to collaborate in implementing such

A33

approaches in the borough. In addition, to support this work, the project has also
specifically focused on improving the online information content provided by the
Council’s Adult Social Care department. This includes developing new online
functionality to help residents to navigate to information about services/support
relevant to them, as well as the potential costs, more quickly.
All of this is supported by the Kingston Care Record (KCR) which is a confidential
electronic record containing both health and social care information. This means
those delivering care can do so with up to date information and without asking
people to repeat their stories numerous times.
How it relates to health partners
Kingston’s health (CCG) and social care (RBK Adult Social Care) commissioners
and providers are working collaboratively to develop and implement the new
integrated model of health and social care for the Kingston system.
This New Model of Care enhances the capability and capacity of primary and
community care services (health - physical and mental, social and voluntary) to
support greater service integration and seamless care for patients as well as
supporting the shift of activity out of hospital into other care settings.
Reporting lines

A34

Improving collaborative commissioning
RBK and Kingston CCG have agreed collaborative approaches to commissioning,
with a particular focus on mental health, children, learning disabilities and
Kingston Coordinated Care.
There is a commitment to continue to collaborate on commissioning where there is
a natural alignment of aims that contribute to the commissioning of KCC, delivery
of the STP and managing demand, for example nursing and residential care,
home care, supported by a stronger drive towards resource pooling and risk share
agreements.
Current challenges and how they are being approached
Regarding Active and Supportive Communities the main challenge is the capacity
within the voluntary and community sector to deliver the prevention and early
intervention work.
Regarding Home Care the main challenge is the ability to have sufficient capacity
of workers with the right skills and competencies to support people in Kingston,
given most care workers live outside the Kingston area. The proposed model
(well-being teams) promotes community based groups of home care workers and
will give them more autonomy and control around their work, as well as improved
terms and conditions.
Information sharing has improved with the implementation of the Kingston Care
Record. Central to the new way of working is use of the Risk Stratification tool.
This tool supports MDTs to take a different look at the people living in the area
and who needs support. Currently the tool only uses health data to produce
reports and social care data needs adding to give a more holistic view of the
people in any given area. Kingston has agreed its approach to seeking service
user consent to enable social care data to be shared. Once the necessary
information governance arrangements have been signed-off this will be tested and
then social care data will go-live.
The new model of care requires a significant shift in the way staff work and relate
to each other. The new model will challenge traditional boundaries around which
providers and roles carry out particular functions. Staff will be supported through
this with a workforce development programme.
Background papers - None
Authors of report
Stephen Taylor, Director of Adult Social Services (DASS)
stephen.taylor@kingston.gov.uk / Tel 0208 547 6052
Tonia Michaelides, Chief Officer, Kingston CCG
tonia.michaelides@kingstonccg.nhs.uk / Tel 020 8734 3006

Health Overview Panel

B1

Appendix B

13 July 2017
The Panel’s Work Programme
Report by Director of Adult Social Care and Head of Corporate Governance

Purpose
To agree the topics to be covered at the next three meetings and agree the approach to
the consideration of major topics.
Recommendations
The Panel is recommended to:
1. discuss and endorse the proposed approach;
2. Agree the three major item topics of Your Healthcare, Mental Health Services and
the SWL Sustainability and Transformation Plan;
3. Make suggestions for smaller topics and agree what smaller topics are taken
forward in 2017.18

Key Points
A.

The work programme sets a flexible framework for the work of the Panel. It needs
to be flexible to take account of urgent requests from partner organisations who are
required to consult the Panel on significant service changes.

B.

The appointment of a new Chair and Vice Chair of the Panel provides an
opportunity to strengthen this Panel’s methodology and way of approaching topics.

C.

It is proposed that at future meetings a main topic is considered and three topics
are put forward for the Panel’s endorsement.

D.

Smaller topics/updates and requests for consultation will also be accommodated at
meetings.

Proposed topics
1.

It is important that the Panel makes a difference and influences the ways in
which services are provided. By focussing on one main item at each meeting
opportunity will be given for members to question and scrutinise officers
presenting the topic. It is expected that the Panel will make recommendations to
the health or social care service area concerned. The following topics are
suggested:

2.

Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for the meeting on Thursday 12
October. The South West London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (SWLJHOSC) is looking at the STP covering the boroughs of
Kingston, Richmond, Merton, Sutton, Wandsworth and Croydon - the “SWL STP
Footprint”. The JHOSC takes an overall view of the proposals but it is important
that Kingston looks at this in depth from the perspective of the impacts on

B2
Kingston residents. We would need to consider how some of the following
objectives are being progressed locally:

●
●
●
●
●

Changing the role of acute and community hospitals
Redesigning primary care and community services
Strengthening prevention and early intervention
Improving mental health and other services
Improving productivity and variations in care

And how some of the ten key priorities are being progressed locally:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Prevention
Engagement
Primary Care
New Care Models
Performance against Core Standards
Clinical Priorities including Cancer, Mental Health, Dementia and Maternity
Quality and Safety
Technology
Workforce
Financial Balance

And consider how some of the six principles underpinning STPs are interpreted
locally:
● Care and support is person-centred: personalised, co-ordinated and
empowering
● Services are created in partnership with citizens and communities
● Focus is on equality and narrowing inequalities
● Carers are identified, supported and involved
● Voluntary, community and social enterprise and housing sectors are involved
as key partners and enablers
● Volunteering and social action are recognised as key enablers
We anticipate that we would need attendance of Commissioners - KCCG, a GP,
and Kingston Hospital.
3.

Your Healthcare for the meeting on Thursday 7 December. Your Healthcare
has recently been inspected by the Care Quality Commission and we would like
to hear how the organisation has responded to this. Community Services playing
an important role in the provision of health services and we would wish to hear
about how services will meet the increasing needs of an aging population both in
terms of what is provided, the role in the Co-ordinated Care approach (some
details have been covered earlier in the agenda) and how services are
commissioned. The attendance of officers from Kingston Clinical Commissioning
Group and Your Health Care will be essential to answer questions.

4.

Mental Health Services for the meeting on Wednesday 28 March 2018.
Mental Health Services are undergoing considerable transformation and we
would wish to know how these are being provided locally; how preventative steps
are being taken in primary care and in schools; early intervention to help address
and stabilise people’s problems swiftly and community mental health services.
Kingston historically has had higher levels of in-patient care than other boroughs
and we would wish to look for reassurances that community provision addresses
the needs of local people. We anticipate that we would need the attendance of
commissioners - KCCG, South West London and St George’s Mental Health

B3
Trust, and possibly South London and Maudsley, Oxleas and Camden and
Islington NHS Foundation Trust.

Approach to the major items
5.

It is proposed that the Chair and/or Vice Chair plus one other member of the
Panel takes on responsibilities for developing lines of questioning for each topic
by meeting with report authors to explore and scope the topic.

6.

A report by the main provider and commissioner will be included on the Panel’s
agenda and members will scrutinise and during the process of discussions at the
meeting make recommendations or suggestions.

Other topics
7.

We anticipate that KCCG’s Choosing Wisely will return to the Health Overview
Panel in October. We would also wish to invite Ann Radmore, Chief Executive
of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to return to update on progress including the financial situation. Two other suggestions are considering
Homecare provision and the local development of Accountable Care
Organisations, their responsibilities and governance. It is possible that other
consultations on service change will also need to be considered by the Panel

Authors of report - Stephen Taylor, Director of Adult Social Care,
stephen.taylor@kingston.gov.uk, Tel: 020 8547 6052
Marian Morrison, Democratic Services Officer, marian.morrison@kingston.gov.uk,
Tel: 020 8547 4623

C1

Appendix C

KINGSTON HEALTH OVERVIEW PANEL
ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17
Foreword by Councillor Andrew Day, Chair of the Health Overview Panel
I am pleased to introduce my third annual report as Chair of the Panel. We have continued
to look at topics in depth and this year these have considered the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) inspection reports of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, South West London
and St George’s Mental Health Trust, and Camden and Islington Mental Health Foundation
Trust (which provides some community mental health services in Kingston). Members put
forward a number of topics for scrutiny and so we invited officers to present on Accessibility
at Train Stations in Kingston, Air Quality in Kingston, Reablement Services and volunteer
schemes at Kingston Hospital. The Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group requested that
we consider the engagement plan for their Choosing Wisely Programme. There were no
other requests to the Panel to consider formal consultations.
As part of identifying items for consideration during 2017/18 we have approached a number
of partner organisations, both voluntary and statutory, for suggestions.
We have continued to respond to questions from members of the public and a summary of
questions raised are included in this report.
Members from the Panel have participated in the SWL Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee which is now considering the South West London Sustainability and
Transformation Plan and how this will re-shape health services in South West London.
I would once again like to take this opportunity to thank all of our partners from South West
London & St George’s Mental Health Trust, Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust the
Clinical Commissioning Group, and officers from the Royal Borough of Kingston for their cooperation and contributions to the work of the Panel. I also wish to thank all members who
served on the Panel during 2015/16 and for the contributions made by our advisory
members: Patricia Turner, Kingston Voluntary Action, Grahame Snelling, Chair of the
Kingston Healthwatch, and Dr Jane D’Souza, GP Advisory Member.
I would like to draw attention to the sad loss of Dr Jonathan Hildebrand, the Council’s
Director of Public Health who passed away on 30 November 2016. His considerable
contribution to the Panel and the work of the Council as a whole and beyond is missed
greatly. We hope that the Public Health Team will be able to take forward and build on the
strong foundation he leaves behind. Stephen Taylor, Director of Adult Social Care has
provided professional support to the Panel since January 2017.
Finally, the report covers a selection of the major items and fuller details can be found by
exploring our minutes and agendas on Kingston’s website via this link HOP.
Councillor Andrew Day, Chair of Health Overview Panel
1

C2
What we did in 2016/17 at a glance:
MAY MEETING
Update on the deficit at Kingston Hospital

page 3

Accessibility at Train Stations in Kingston

page 4

SEPTEMBER MEETING
Care Quality Commission inspection of Kingston Hospital NHS Trust

page 5

NOVEMBER MEETING
Care Quality Commission Inspection of South West London and
St George’s Mental Health Trust

page 7

Kingston Clinical Assessment Service and access to GP appointments

page 8

Stay Well this winter

page 9

JANUARY MEETING
Air Quality in Kingston

page 11

Mental Health services provided by Camden and Islington NHS
Foundation Trust (CQC Inspection report)

page 13

Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report

page 14

Update on the South West London Sustainability and Transformation Plan page 15
MARCH MEETING
Update from Ann Radmore, Chief Executive at Kingston Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

page 16

Reablement Services in Kingston

page 18

Kingston CCG’s Choosing Wisely Programme and engagement plan

page 20

SOUTH WEST LONDON JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

page 21

2

C3
1.

HEALTH SCRUTINY – what it is

Councils with social care functions can hold all providers and commissioners of publicly
funded health and social care to account for the quality of their services through powers to
obtain information, request attendance at committee, ask questions in public and make
recommendations for improvements which then need to be considered by the relevant health
body. Health and Social Care policies arising from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments
and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies are also included within the remit. Where
proposals for major changes to health services are not considered to be in the interests of
local health service provision, as a last resort these can be referred to the Secretary of State
for determination. Health scrutiny also has a valuable pro-active role in helping to
understand communities and tackle health inequalities.
2.

MAY MEETING

2.1 Update on the deficit at Kingston Hospital
The Panel previously looked at the deficit at Kingston Hospital in November 2015. The Panel
considered latest information from the Trust’s board reports about the financial situation, the
deteriorating financial situation for hospital trusts in England and the reported drop in
performance on some key performance areas nationally.
The Hospital’s Deputy Director of Finance attended the Panel and stated that the final
audited deficit for 2015/16 was £6.9m which was in line with the revised forecast and the
position agreed with the Financial Regulators. The Plan for 2016/17 had been for an
underlying deficit budget of £4.2M, which is a reduction of £2.7M on the previous year.
However following the receipt (with conditions) of Sustainability and Transformation funding
of £8.1M the deficit would translate into a £3.9M surplus. The Deputy Director noted that
whist funding is available this year the position for 2017/18 is uncertain.
The Deputy Director explained where changes had occurred in comparison with last year.
There were some non-recurrent items in 2015/16 e.g. costs associated with the
improvements to A&E, cost inflation of £6M, increase in capital spend for essential building
maintenance, IT infrastructure, additional medical staffing, medical equipment additional
medical insurance costs, IT and investments in quality which are primarily additional staffing.
In response to a question about whether the Trust was receiving budget reductions year on
year, it was confirmed that the Trust will benefit from a 1.1% increase in this year’s tariff and
there is further opportunity to increase income by increasing activity. Furthermore, the DH
previously has required efficiency savings of 4% but this year the DH has reduced this level
to 2% as there is now recognition that it is difficult to achieve year on year.
The total agency spend for 2015/16 was £18M and included nursing, clinical and corporate
staff. Agency costs are 9% of the total pay budget and are comparable with other Trusts.
Whilst agency caps introduced by DH are reducing this spend, there is still a national
shortage of nurses. Recruitment is continuing in the Philippines and the Trust is increasing
the number of student nurse placements from September for students from Kingston
University. Fewer nurses are now being recruited from Europe due to a Nursing and
3

C4
Midwifery Council requirement that European applicants to undertake the same international
English language tests as those from outside Europe.
In relation to risks in delivering this year’s financial plan, the Panel heard that there is a small
contingency fund of £1M. However, events such as junior doctors’ strikes could jeopardise
the budget as elective work would be cancelled and income reduced. Other risks are around
recruitment difficulties particularly as a consequence of the capped agency rates for medical
staff. Winter pressures particularly from viruses could lead to the need to open additional
beds but the hospital is not funded for these.
The Panel heard that delayed transfers of care are generally caused for reasons which are
external to the hospital such as availability of community beds and social care reasons. The
hospital ensures assessments for on-going care are undertaken as quickly as possible to
ensure delays are minimised. The Director of Nursing confirmed that there are a number of
work streams with the CCG and social care to improve community arrangements to support
discharges.
2.2 Accessibility at Train Stations in Kingston
This item was requested by a member of the Panel because a local resident who was
visually impaired had experienced difficulties at New Malden station and had been unable to
access train information. The Panel heard that the Community Rail Liaison Manager had
personally been involved with this matter. There had been an intermittent problem with the
PA system and that this has now been solved.
The report to the Panel outlined accessibility at the Borough’s ten train stations and the
access policies which Network Rail and South West Trains (SWT) have in place. Three
stations in the Kingston area (Kingston, Surbiton and Worcester Park) are fully accessible
with ramps or accessible lifts. Other stations have some accessibility but there is some
difficulty with transfer to platforms. The Office of Rail and Road monitors compliance against
access policies and current policies are being refreshed. Any comments about accessibility
issues in SWT are considered across the network and used to improve services both locally
and more widely. All staff are trained for accessibility and staff are regularly re-briefed on
issues.
Network Rail and the Department for Transport (DfT) allocate budgets every 5 years to
enable accessibility works to be carried out at a small number of stations. However,
proximity to fully accessible stations is one of the criteria for nominating additional stations for
improvement and no further Kingston stations have been put forward for further improvement
in the near future.
35% of the 180 stations in the SWT area are accessible; however, by footfall accessibility
covers 75% of passenger journeys. Members felt that 35% was relatively poor and there
should be wider publicity about transfers to accessible stations. The Panel asked a range of
questions e.g. about how people could be taken to other stations when the stations are
unstaffed, disabled parking at stations and ensuring spaces are only used by disabled people
plus the problems encountered by people with young children and buggies with the long flight
of steps to reach the Chessington platforms. The question of the reduced Chessington
service in the evenings plus the later start in the morning was also raised.
4

C5
The Manager explained the accessibility booking system for people who do not use trains
regularly. Leaflets about arrangements are available and detailed information can be found
on the internet or by contacting National Rail Enquiries. If booked in advance people will be
met and helped on and off the train either by station staff or the guard. SWT will provide
transfers by taxi for people with mobility problems from an inaccessible station to an
accessible train station. Passengers with specific accessibility requirements are encouraged
to make their needs known to staff so that they can be assisted appropriately. They can, for
example, be advised on the best position on the platform from which to board the train to
minimise the gap.
The Manager agreed that SWT were aware of the problems with accessibility on the
Chessington line and stated that Worcester Park was made accessible in the last round of
works.
Attention was drawn to the plans to radically change the Tolworth roundabout to deal with
traffic issues and for significant development close to this area to provide hotel, residential
and business/office development. There would be a significant increase in journeys. The
Manager advised that the Council would have provided input into the associated DfT
consultation along with other boroughs in the SWT area.
A request was made for signage saying “alight here for Kingston Hospital” below the station
sign at Norbiton Station and to provide an announcement on the train and the Manager
agreed to take forward these suggestions. However the platform step height at Norbiton
Station could not be changed as it is required to accommodate a range of rolling stock which
runs through this station. He confirmed that Norbiton Station complies with the requirements
for the gap between the platform and the train but saw the difficulty this presents for elderly
people. Every SW train had a guard who could assist people to the train. Work has been
undertaken to ensure ramps are in a visible place but he agreed to take away the point about
where people should stand so the guard knows that they need assistance.
3. SEPTEMBER MEETING
3.1 Care Quality Commission inspection of Kingston Hospital NHS Trust
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) published its inspection report in July 2016, following
the visit to the Trust in January 2016. The registration and inspection process ensures that
providers reach specified standards concerning the care facilities, policy systems and
procedures and how they are run.
During the course of inspections five key questions are pursued: Are Services Safe,
Effective, Caring, Responsive and Well-led? Eight core services are examined and each is
rated:
Urgent and emergency services
Requires improvement
Medical care (including older people’s care)
Requires improvement
Outpatients and diagnostic imaging
Requires improvement
Surgery
Good
Critical Care
Good
Maternity and gynaecology
Good
Services for children and young people
Good
5

C6
End of life care

Good

The overall rating for the hospital was “requires improvement”. Whilst there were some
shortfalls in the Emergency Department, medical care, outpatients and diagnostics, the CQC
inspection identified a lot of good practice. It highlighted the strengths of the Surgery
Department, the success of the Dementia Strategy, the professionalism and care provided by
the Specialist Palliative Care Team and the Sexual Health Services at the Wolverton Clinic
particularly those for young and vulnerable people with a learning disability. The Panel
considered information about the Trust’s detailed action plan to address shortcomings.
The Panel also looked at the service ratings of other nearby hospitals and Kingston Hospital
compared favourably with these. Kingston was rated “good” for Surgery and Critical care
whereas those areas at Croydon, Epsom and St Helier all required improvement. For
maternity & gynaecology and children and young people only Kingston and Croydon were
rated as “good”.
The Director of Nursing and Patient Experience gave a detailed presentation to the Panel
and outlined the actions taken and planned on the seven “must do” areas identified by the
Inspection which were:








Ensure the management, governance and culture in A&E supports the delivery
of high quality care
Improve the quality of performance data in A&E and use it effectively to improve
performance
Record all identified risks in A&E on the department’s risk register and take
action to manage the risks
All patients without mental capacity area are assessed and if restraint is
required this is recorded in the patient’s record (Note - restrain primarily referred
to the use of mittens to prevent removal of IV lines etc.).
Ensure medicines are secured and stored safely and not accessible to
unauthorised persons
Improve the system for monitoring equipment maintenance and safety checks
Ensure Duty of Candour is followed and include a formal apology within
correspondence and keep a record

The Panel was assured that the seven “must do” actions will be completed by December
2016 and the majority of the 47 “should do” items will be completed by March 2017. Actions
included:

Appointment in January of a new A&E clinical director

Additional funding to provide 7 day a week palliative care service on site
(previously 6 days)

Remodelling/rebuilding - a new 6 bed clinical decisions unit in A&E,
outpatients, transport lounge and radiology waiting areas, a new dementia
friendly unit (to be completed in November) and approval for changes to the
MRI/ICT waiting areas in 2017
In relation to A&E performance Kingston Hospital is achieving 91-92% of patients being seen
and treated within 4 hours but this is short of the national standard of 95%. There has been a
4.8% increase in A&E attendances and the hospital is seeing increasing numbers of patients
6

C7
who are older and sicker. The Trust is exploring new approaches to extend roles within the
A&E as there is now a national shortage of middle grade A&E doctors.
4.

NOVEMBER MEETING

4.1 Care Quality Commission Inspection of South West London and St George’s
Mental Health Trust
The CQC inspection report was published in June 2016 following the CQC’s visit in March.
The registration and inspection process ensures that providers reach specified standards
concerning the care facilities, policy systems and procedures and how they are run. Whilst
the overall rating of the services was requires improvement seven of the ten service areas
were rated as good. The three rated as requiring improvement were:




Long stay/rehabilitation mental health wards for working age adults
Community based mental health services for adults of working age
Community based mental health services for older people

However, the CQC highlighted that there is much for the Trust to be proud of including the
commitment of the senior executive team to improving services and provide a high standard
of services. There has also been significant improvement in the care pathway. Comment
was made about the improvements in the management of access to acute beds across the
Trust and facilitation of practical arrangements associated with discharge. Most community
teams were meeting their targets for assessing and treating people in a timely manner. The
Trust board provides effective challenge to ensure the Trust meets its objectives and there is
a largely healthy culture and good relationships with patients.
The main areas for improvement were around:







Support on rehabilitation wards to enable patients to achieve independence
Need for better identification on forensic and CAMHS wards where patients are
being secluded and ensuring observations and medical review take place
appropriately
One to one professional individual supervision of staff was patchy in the
community
Recent changes around centralisation of administrative support (now at
Kingston) had resulted in poor standards for communications with patients and
GPs about appointments etc. but the report noted that this situation was
improving
Risk assessment needs to improve across a number of team

A number of Requirement Notices were issued and these related to aspects of supervision,
seclusion, risk assessment, medicines management, skill mix and support to implement the
recovery model in rehabilitation services and safeguarding. However the CQC have
confirmed that the Trust was on the borderline of a “good” rating. Following actions by the
Trust and a further visit by the CQC in September 2016, the CQC have confirmed that the
Trust had made very positive progress and all regulatory requirements had been met.

7

C8
The Medical Director gave further information about actions related to Community Services
for Older Adults (waiting time for the memory clinic), Staff supervision, Restrictive practices
and seclusion, Safety of Medicines and Administrative support. Problems had developed
following the recent restructuring of the administrative function involving new IT systems.
This had led to delays in issuing letters to service users and GPs.
The Panel heard that there were some staffing challenges in the Community Mental Health
Teams but recruitment to substantive posts is increasing and there is less reliance on
temporary staff. The Trust has made much progress to address the identified shortcomings
particularly in the community services.
The CCG commented that very few mental health trusts have been awarded a good or
outstanding rating and that it is unusual for the CQC to indicate that there is an opportunity
for regrading and whilst this is awaited to be formally announced by the CQC, a positive
outcome was expected.
The Medical Director confirmed that the Trust did not provide primary mental services in
Kingston and it was agreed to invite Camden and Islington Mental Health Foundation Trust
as concern was expressed about that Trust’s CQC rating.
4.2 Kingston Clinical Assessment Service and access to GP appointments
A member of the Panel asked that we look at this topic. The Kingston Clinical Assessment
Service (KCAS) was introduced in 2006 to support GP practices making routine (nonemergency) outpatient referrals through the Choose and Book system and to ensure that
referrals were appropriate for the patient’s condition. At that time the Panel had been
requested to review KCAS as there were suggestions that the service was leading to delays
in appointments. The Panel found that many of the initial teething problems which prompted
the review had been resolved and it was noted that the KCAS approach had helped raise
GPs’ awareness of alternative clinical approaches to patients’ conditions. The Panel also
learned of a significant cost saving which was being made at the time.
In 2015 a new electronic method of making referrals “e-referral” was introduced by the NHS
which addressed many of the functional weaknesses of the previous Choose and Book
system. Two GP practices in Kingston piloted e-referral to test how much of the referrals
process could be undertaken by practices. The Panel was informed that the CCG is
reviewing referral processes, including the role of KCAS, and consultation on proposals
would happen shortly. It is expected that the current administrative team arrangements will
change and freed-up skills and resources will be used to support practices differently.
The Director confirmed that that practices had received incentives to use choose and book
and similar incentives would be provide for e-referrals. The e-referral tools would include
forms, triage processes and a suite of referral protocols for specified conditions/intervention
and the CCG would update the panel on the proposals going forward
Information was also given about the new arrangements for GPs appointments on Saturdays
at limited surgeries and by April 2017 all patients in Kingston will be able to book Saturday
morning appointments with a GP or nurse. Practices will also be providing dedicated
appointments for children to ensure sick children can be seen by a GP quickly.
8

C9

Surbiton Health Centre began providing a primary care extended service in the autumn on
Saturdays and Sundays from 8am to 8pm which is available to all. The CCG plans to open
two more such services by April 2017 which will include offering appointments from 8am to
8pm seven days a week. The CCG will also be piloting a single point of access via phone to
book appointments across a number of practices so that if an appointment is not available at
a patient’s usual practice they can be offered an earlier appointment at a surgery nearby.
4.3 Stay Well this winter
The CCG’s Director of Quality and Engagement gave a detailed presentation on “Stay well
this winter”. This was the second year of the national campaign led by the Department of
Health, Public Health England and NHS England and built on the achievements of last year’s.
The CCG would be including some local key messages especially about how to access
health care and advice.
The main national campaign brief is “to ensure that people who are most at-risk of
preventable emergency admission to hospital are aware of and, where possible, are
motivated to take actions what may avoid admission this winter”. It would focus on C to DE
Adults age 65+, people with long term conditions (LTCs) and their carers, encouraging up
take of flu vaccine especially for pregnant women, parents with children age 2 – 7 and people
with LTCs. LTCs include asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, and diabetes;
these can be exacerbated if people fall unwell with flu.
The Director emphasised that the campaign was not about preventing admissions among
target groups, but to help them stay well to avoid the need for a visit to hospital. Key
messages included seeking advice from pharmacists at the first sign of feeling unwell,
stocking up with medicines, prescriptions and food ahead of the holiday period, keeping
warm, having a flu vaccination and keeping an eye on elderly or frail friends, neighbours and
relatives.
The local plan included arrangements for primary care access – which for this winter
included:

Weekend services at Surbiton Health Centre offering booked in advance
appointments and appointments available on the day for registered and nonregistered patients. (Two more weekend walk in services would be operational
by 1 April 2017 in North Kingston and Chessington/Hook).

Saturday morning GP clinics (walk-in and booked) at Berrylands Surgery,
Canbury Medical Health Centre, Chessington Park (alternate weeks), Orchard
Practice, Claremont Medical Centre, Fairhill Practice, Groves Medical Central
Holmwood Corner. Kingston Health Centre, Manor Drive Medical Centre, West
Barnes Surgery for patients registered at those practices.

Same Day consultation for children under 10 years old (inclusive) at
Berrylands Surgery, Brunswick, Canbury Medical Health Centre, Groves
Medical Centre, Kingston Health Centre, Orchard Practice

Mental Health Street Triage

GP in A&E available 18 hours per day and currently seeing 50-60 patients per
day
9

C10
A detailed communication plan had been developed using a range of actions including free
NHS materials, information on the CCG’s website and twitter, help from local partner
organisations and neighbourhood notice boards, media engagement and a number of
engagement activities including stalls at Christmas light switch on events. Local key
messages were about locations of weekend walk-in access, Saturday morning appointments
and same day consultations for children under 5, plus self-care and keeping warm, and
avoiding slips and trips.
Questions were asked about the locations of the primary care extended services and a
request was made that one be sited in New Malden. It was also suggested that public
transport routes are taken into account when considering locations. The Director responded
that the CCG was intending to continue to expand weekend surgery opening but that there
were budget and workforce constraints to provide 7 day a week service. The Director of
Primary Care Development explained that a piece of work was being progressed to look at
where services could be best located and this would include looking at patient flows and
transport links. She also explained that neighbouring CCGs were also undertaking similar
approaches and it could make sense for patients to be seen just across the border in some
locations.
In relation to questions concerning the mental health street triage, the Director explained that
this builds on past work and involved trained professionals (nurses and psychologists)
supporting the police and working closely with the ambulance service.
The important role of pharmacists and the new Health Living Pharmacies initiative were
highlighted. This has involved mapping of locally available voluntary services and
pharmacists are able to signpost people to these.
5. JANUARY 2016 MEETING
5.1 Air Quality in Kingston
One of our Panel members requested that we look at this topic. The Panel received a
detailed position statement on the Council’s approach to air quality and was asked to
recommend that a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment of air quality in Kingston is developed.
We heard that air quality is an important Public Health Issue in Kingston contributing to
shortening life expectancy and disproportionately impacting on the most vulnerable. Tackling
air quality contributes to increasing healthy life expectancy and reducing early death from
cardio-respiratory disease and cancer. Public Health worked with Environmental Health in
the compilation of the Air Quality Action Plan which was adopted in July 2016. The Council
designated the borough as an Air Quality Management Area for NO2 and PM10 in 2003. An
Air Quality Action Plan was introduced and revised in 2016 and can be viewed on the
Council’s website. A fuller Strategy for Air Quality will be finalised later this year.
Air Quality standards regulations enshrined in UK legislation set standards for: Particulate
matter (PM10 AND PM2.5), Nitrogen dioxide (NO2), Ozone, Sulphur Dioxide, Carbon
monoxide, Lead, Benzene and Denso(a)pyrene. Whilst the majority of air pollutants have
declined in the UK due to the reduction in burning coal and wood, some - particulates,
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) and ozone - are found at levels which continue to pose a risk of harm
10

C11
to health. The main focus for Kingston is on Particulate Matter (PMs) and NO2 and an Air
Quality Management Area has been established.
Particulate matter aggravates respiratory and cardiovascular conditions and PM2.5 are very
significant, because being smaller, they can deposit deeper within the respiratory tract and
affect children, older people and those with existing heart and lung conditions.
The Council has monitored PM10 at two kerbside sites in the borough. The objectives are to
achieve:
 an annual average of less than 40 μg/m3 and
 the 24 hour mean should not exceed 50 μg/m3 on more than 35 days per year.
The annual averages for the two stations located at Sopwith Way and Tolworth Broadway
were well within the target (21.3 μg/m3 and 20.0 μg/m3 respectively). The 24 hour objective
was exceeded three times at Sopwith Way and once at Tolworth, both therefore met the
objectives in 2015.
RBK also monitored NO2 at the same two kerb sites within the borough in 2015. The
national objectives are:
 an annual average less than 40 μg/m3 and
 no more than 18 hours per year where the hourly mean exceeds 200 μg/m3.
Whilst neither site exceeded the hourly mean, both failed to meet the annual average
objective with Sopwith Way averaging 53.5 μg/m3 and Tolworth Broadway 48.5 μg/m3. The
Sopwith Monitor has been decommissioned but a further two monitors are being procured
with an intention to locate these near to the Robin Hood junction and in Kingston Town
Centre (subject to site assessment).
Other Monitoring devices at a further 40 locations in the borough collect data to assess
against the annual mean objective. Concentrations of NO are highest on roads with high
traffic flows and/or congestion.
The following areas in Kingston are the worst in a list of the 10 most disadvantaged areas:





Birkenhead Avenue to Hawks Road area
Kingston Town Centre
Canbury Park Road/Willoughby Road area
Richmond Road/East Road area

Four other areas in the top 10 most deprived for air quality are located along the A3 corridor.
The best air quality in Kingston is in South of the Borough.
There has been a lot of health research on air pollution. The Royal College of Physicians
report “Every Breath We Take”, 2016, concluded that people who are most vulnerable to poor
air quality are those who live in deprived areas, who live, learn or work near busy roads and
the young and the old. Similar risks apply to people who spend longer in traffic. Car
occupants are typically exposed to higher levels of air pollution than cyclists or pedestrians
as the latter can use quieter streets with lower traffic volumes which are less polluted.
People with respiratory problems such as asthma, chronic bronchitis and emphysema are
particularly vulnerable.
11

C12

The Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants identified that there is evidence to
support a causal relationship between exposure to traffic-related air pollution and
exacerbation of asthma. There is also suggestive evidence of a causal relationship with
onset of childhood asthma, other respiratory symptoms, impaired lung function and
cardiovascular morbidity and mortality. The International Agency for Research on Cancer
listed diesel exhaust as a Class 1 carcinogen and extended this to all ambient air pollution in
2013. Recently studies are looking at possible links to cognitive decline in older age. The
National Institute of Clinical Excellence is consulting until 25 January 2017 on guidelines for
Councils “Air Pollution – outdoor air quality and health” which are expected to be published in
July 2017. This includes a range of measures to reduce for traffic related air pollution and
whilst the individual benefits are small, the cumulative effect is significant. Proposals include
recommendations to reduce speed humps and introduce 20mph areas, changes to driving
style, selection of vehicles by the public sector, introduction of cycle lanes, clean air zones,
and congestion charging. TfL contracts are now introducing cleaner buses.
The range of questions and discussion was wide ranging and included the following:






the impact of HGVs observing of warning notices to leave the A3 at certain junctions
to avoid the low emission zone.
concerns about locations of schools near to roads with high traffic volumes - the Panel;
was assured that air pollution drops off quite quickly at a relatively short distance from
a road.
whilst aircraft pass across Kingston this is at a high level and the majority of air
pollution is dispersed and it is not possible to distinguish between air pollution arising
from traffic and that from aircraft.
There has been more research on the effects of PM10 as this was the most harmful
leaving the European Union will not affect UK actions around Air Pollution as the EU
regulations are enshrined in UK legislation.

The Panel recommended that the Council considers undertaking a Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment of Air Quality in Kingston.
5.2 Mental Health services provided by Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust
(CQC Inspection report)
Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust were responsible for primary care mental
health services in Kingston. As the recent CQC inspection rating for community services was
“requires improvement”, Members requested that the Trust be invited to discuss how this
related to primary care mental health services in Kingston. The Trust’s Chief Operating
officer explained that the CQC inspection was focussed on the St Pancras site and the health
based places of safety at the Royal Free, Whittington and University College London
Hospitals and that actions were being progressed. No visit had been made to services
provided in Kingston and the Chief Operating Officer explained that IAPTS services generally
do not get inspected but these are covered by self-assessment processes. The Trust had
put a huge amount of effort into the development of the new service in Kingston including
good levels of quality improvement and supervision audits. In his opinion the issues for
secondary care services do not apply to primary care mental health services.
12

C13
He explained that the Trust was providing services in Kingston as the service had been put
out to tender and it had been successful. The primary mental health service is designed to
replace the traditional referral process to secondary care mental health services and 95% of
patients are seen and treated in primary care settings. The support to primary care meant
that patients’ needs could be managed more quickly and earlier interventions accessed and
the aim is to ensure mental health capability in every GP surgery. Generally only 5% of
people with mental health needs require secondary services. An outcome of better provision
in primary care is that community mental health teams are freed up to provide more intensive
help for patients. This new approach also improves contact with the patient’s GP.
The Trust is particularly proud of the development of services for the Korean Community in
Kingston. Further developments are underway with Kingston College and Kingston
University for young people age 18-21 and IAPTS are also beginning to work alongside
employment services. With regard to waiting time targets, initial referrals and for first line
treatment are very quick but there can be waits for the more stepped up therapies and this is
an area that the Trust is focussing on. Support for primary mental health services is very
good and advice is given on the same day to GPs.
The Panel heard details about the services that the Trust provides in Kingston:
Kingston iCope (Improving Access to Psychological Therapies services (IAPTS) – this is
psychological therapy is provided on a on a stepped-care approach with a range of group
interventions. The service performs very well on targets for 16 week wait and 18 week wait.
iCope is also on track to meet the recovery target. However there can be a wait if clients
need a step-up intervention i.e. more than group or on-line approaches. In these
circumstances they receive supportive “holding” interventions.
A Korean version of the on-line iCope has been developed and the service is actively
recruiting Korean speaking therapists.
Primary Care Mental Health Team (PCMHT) – this service was introduced in late 2015 as a
pilot multi-disciplinary team led by a psychiatrist and aims to support Kingston GPs to
manage a greater proportion of mental health needs within primary care. Patients are offered
treatment at a GP practice close to home wherever possible or at the team base at Hollyfield
House. The service received 484 referrals between April and November 2016 with two-thirds
of referrals coming from GPs. Less than 10% of patients go on to be referred to secondary
mental health services. GPs receive a same day response to requests for advice by phone
or email. Service user feedback is very positive.
Substance Misuse Services – this covers drug and alcohol issues and all clients are seen
within the three weeks target time. Effective links have been built with local police and
magistrates courts. Stronger links are being developed with Kingston University and Job
Centre Plus. A very high proportion of clients referred by the criminal justice system complete
court ordered treatment. The service performs well compared to others on the number of
clients who leave the service who are no longer using substances.
The Panel noted that there would be a re-inspection of the Trust later in the year and
requested that the Trust is invited to provide an update on the re-inspection.

13

C14
5.3 Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report
The annual report for 2015/16 was presented by Julie Phillips, Head of the Safeguarding
Service. It listed eleven objectives which were fully achieved. These included some
governance matters and some key objectives were:




Signing up to and implementing the new Pan London Safeguarding Adults at
Risk policy in March 2016
Reviewing the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguarding (DoLS) process and work is
in progress with internal audit to identify and improve process
Embedding “making safeguarding personal” across all partners including the
development of new safeguarding forms in line with the new Pan London
Safeguarding Adults at Risk policy

Statistics covering a three year period from 2013/14 to 2015/16 were presented. There has
been a 6% increase in the number of reported cases of adult abuse during 2015/16 which
totalled 690. 124 cases went onto investigation and 60 were substantiated. Most of the
safeguarding cases occur at the person’s own home possibly suggestive of carer stress.
The report also included details from local partner agencies on their involvement and work on
adult safeguarding: Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group, Metropolitan Police, Kingston
Hospital, Your Health Care, South West London & St George’s Mental Health Trust and the
London Ambulance Service.
The following priorities are being progress in 2016/17:







Developing greater community awareness about safeguarding and protecting
vulnerable people
Working with care providers to improve the way they can support and protect
vulnerable people
Ensuring that performance information from all organisations continues to be a
focus to inform future target improvements and provide challenge
Continuing to ensure practice is embedded – “making safeguarding personal”
so citizens who are safeguarded/protected can determine for themselves the
outcomes they want to achieve.
Progress with compatible electronic data management in Kingston Adult Social
Care and the mental health trust
Development of more robust processes and understanding around
safeguarding adults at risk and children at risk of harm by close working and
training with Adult Social Care and Achieving for Children

The CCG’s Director of Quality and Engagement drew attention to the considerable progress
that had been made in Kingston by partner organisations including the CCG and Kingston
Hospital as a result of the direction and professionalism of the Safeguarding Service with the
outcome of making people in Kingston much safer.

14

C15
5.4 Update on the South West London Sustainability and Transformation Plan
The KCCG’s Director of Quality and Engagement spoke about the steps taken to date. He
explained that the SWL STP is closely linked with the NHS’s Five Year Forward View. It is a
collaborative approach of all provider trusts and CCGs in SWL and is not commissioning led.
All regions were asked to submit STPs and South West London is one of 44 footprints. The
SWL draft plan was submitted to the NHS in October 2016 and was published by both the
CCG and the Council for public discussion. Public engagement events took place in early
spring, including in Kingston. Earlier local engagement was captured on the issues paper
published the last year.
The objective of the STP is to provide high quality and effective care and to ensure services
are the best possible. This will include investment in estates and bringing services closer to
people. The plan includes wide ranging initiatives, one being the development of locality
teams across SW London, working in a similar way to Kingston Co-ordinated Care. Each
locality team would provide services for 50K people. New technologies will be introduced
including virtual clinics and the use of apps. Workforce redesign will improve capacity and
there will also be greater clinical networking to share skills and improve outcomes.
The plan does not specify whether there will be 3, 4 or 5 hospital sites in SWL but the
optimum is considered to be 4 or 5 hospital sites. Not every hospital will provide all of the
same services. There is a financial challenge of £900m across the SWL health and social
care sector up to 2020 and hospital buildings are in need of considerable maintenance and
modernisation.
Reorganisation of CCGs will provide a single management team for Kingston and Richmond
CCGs from 1 April 2017. Work has also commenced on joining back office functions of
hospitals.
Questions and comments made by Councillors included the lack of coordination and release
of information to all members in the early dialogue with the JHOSC. Concern was also
expressed about opportunities to consider firmer proposals on potential hospital reductions.
6. MARCH MEETING
6.1 Update from Ann Radmore, Chief Executive at Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust
Ann Radmore, Chief Executive spoke about progress made by the Hospital. It provides
services for 380K people i.e. the whole of Kingston, half of Richmond, one third of Merton
and significant numbers from East Elmbridge and Wandsworth.
Kingston Hospital performs as a good average on the A&E target when compared to
hospitals in London and London hospitals perform better than the rest of the country. The
Trust is working with the CCG to make changes both in hospital and out of hospital to help lift
performance further.

15

C16
Performance and financial position:






A&E performance for February 2017 against the 95% target was 87.1% and for
March to the 9th 92.8%.
Delayed transfers of care as at 10 March are 28 across the 6 boroughs. The
largest single factor is access to neuro rehabilitation.
18 week performance for January was 94.8% above the 92% target and the
number of cancelled operations was small during this winter
Cancer performance exceeded all targets in January and Kingston was the best
performer in London for the 62 day target.
The forecast end of year deficit is £7.1M compared to the 2016/17 deficit of
£4.2M. Reasons for the deteriorating position are:
o Changes to non-elective (non-planned cases) income/case mix
o Financial effect of the tariff change
o Unfunded costs of opening additional beds and delayed discharges
o Cost improvement plans have not delivered as much as expected

CQC Inspection and progress with the “must do” actions: Ann Radmore referred to the
Director of Nursing’s report on the Hospital’s response to the CQC inspection in January
2016. The inspection identified seven “must do” items which related to systems and
processes. Audits and walkabouts have been undertaken to test progress on the 7 “must do”
and 42 “should do” areas. She confirmed that good progress had been made on the 7must
do items and the CQC is happy with this. 33 of the “should do” items have either been
completed or are due to be completed in 2016/17 but the remainder will take longer or
require funding to complete. The most significant actions which require funding are reviewing
maternity capacity, A&E capacity and improving the ICU environment.
Staff survey: There has been a significant improvement about how staff feel about working
at the hospital and the Trust scored in the top 20% of all acute hospital on 13 of the indicators
and it also has the best overall outcome in south west London.
Estates Strategy: The Trust is commissioning a new estates strategy and this will reflect
the South West London 5 year forward view. It will consider the age and performance of the
current buildings and what changes should be consider over the next 10-15 years
Members asked about the following areas:
Bed blocking and the number of beds: The Trust has good processes in place to ensure
that social workers are in the hospital on a regular basis. However, there are a number of
local pressures - a shortage of residential and nursing home placements, delivery of home
care the supply of neuro rehabilitation. At any one time the hospital has 20-30 patients who
are ready to go elsewhere but the appropriate placements are not available immediately.
Identification of capital funding: the Trust was developing a business case to bid for
Treasury capital in response to the recent announcement of additional funding for A&E
departments. It was also exploring sources of private capital although this requires approval
by NHS Improvement.
Approach to the deficit: the Trust Board made a decision to invest in patient care and
safety, the physical environment and a number of senior nursing and clinical posts. Changes
16

C17
are being made to back office and process functions and the hospital is considering every
possible avenue including non-pay elements to move to balancing the books. Very good
progress had been made in reducing agency staff spending and there had been an increase
of 800 permanent staff comparing December 2016 with December 2015.
Overseas visitors: Charges for treatment are the standard NHS charge plus 50%. Two
members of staff recover costs and the recovery rate is 75%. The Government is looking to
identify people at the point of entry to the system.
Sustainability and Transformation Plan: the approach is to do more for less and this is
difficult to with increasing demands for health care and the increasing age of the population.
But much can be achieved by changing people’s behaviour and this is led by Public Health
within the Council. New Locality Teams are being introduced covering 50,000 people which
will integrate primary care GP services and community hospital services. One of the aims is
to ensure that there is earlier intervention and deterioration is reduced or prevented. This
should lead to reduction in demand on inpatient services. Bed reductions will only take place
once the earlier intervention and support from community services are fully in place.
A&E performance: the Trust did achieve 95% seen or treated within 4 hours for the first half
of 2016 but there was difficulty admitting patients quickly due to the shortage of beds and all
nearby hospitals experienced bed shortages this winter. The Trust has completed a review
of A&E. There are a number of patients attending who do not need to be there and the Trust
has a service where people with minor conditions can be seen by a GP in a part of the A&E
department. The hours for this service have been increased and the GP can redirect patients
to the Surbiton Health Centre Walk in Clinic or other services. But there are various reasons
why patients prefer to attend A&E. The best approach is to provide an appropriate range of
services in the department i.e. nurse practitioners and GPs in the department. Kingston A&E
sees fewer inappropriate attendances than many other A&E departments and this reflects
improved hours of access to GPs, Surbiton Health Centre, other facilities and pharmacies.
6.2 Reablement Services in Kingston
The Council’s Home Care Transformation Lead spoke about the Reablement Service.
Reablement is: “Providing personal care, help with daily living activities and other practical
tasks, to encourage people to develop the confidence and skills to carry out these activities
themselves and continue to live at home. It tends to be provided to people who have just
been discharged from hospital or are otherwise entering the care system following a crisis
and will be in the person’s home”.
Under the Care Act 2014 it is provided free of charge and can last up to six weeks. During
this time discussions may take place about arrangements beyond this period as clients would
then need to fund additional this support.
The NHS provides similar support known as Intermediate Care which is a short-term
intervention for people who might otherwise have a prolonged stay in hospital or
inappropriate admission to hospital or residential care. This support can either be provided in
the person’s own home or in a bed-based setting.

17

C18
Although Reablement is a Council responsibility service delivery was transferred to Your
Healthcare in 2013. A review is underway as it is part of the Kingston Co-ordinated Care
programme. It is expected to combine Reablement with the long term care model and make
further improvements including greater engagement with the voluntary sector in the Active
Supportive Community approach.
The current budget is £1.239M and approximately 500 people (approx. 50 per month) are
referred to Your Healthcare by Adult Social Care every year. The criteria for access to the
service are tight so a person has to have quite developed needs to access the service.
The key performance measure for Reablement is the number of people who leave the
service fully independent. Performance in Kingston has varied between 20-30% over recent
years, which is low compared with other councils. The national benchmark is 60%. Your
Healthcare has developed an integrated approach to Reablement and Intermediate Care and
reporting on independence has improved and has increased to 46%. Outcomes are
influenced by the high number of older people aged 85+ who are referred for support.
However, since January 2017 conversations about support are now taking place much earlier
in the process.
Members asked about the following areas:
Respite care: can be provided and the offer depends on carers’ needs. It can vary from
occasional respite provision to a sitting service to give carers a few hours’ break. Sometimes
supporting carers is more effective than direct support to the cared for.
Support for carers’ needs: the Care Act 2014 gives carers equal rights and there is a
statutory duty to assess their needs separately from those of the person being cared for.
Most carers’ assessments are undertaken by Kingston Carers Network.
Service procurement: the current contract runs to September 2018 and procurement for
the future model will need to commence by October 2017. The service model combined
reablement and long term care.
Staffing: it was noted that Kingston is an expensive area to live and service models need to
be innovative and providers need to be able to work well with diversity.
Access to appropriate benefits: there are contractual arrangements on the provision of
information about how to access benefits and the CAB are assisting with the provision of
advice. Support can also be provided by the voluntary sector and Public Health is currently
undertaking work about the role of community navigators. Needs can also be picked up
during financial assessment discussions about people’s ability to pay for services. It is in the
Council’s interests to ensure people are accessing benefits as this reduces the amount of
funded support required.
Cost: people pay for an hour’s care but the carer is only there for 30-40 minutes. It was
explained that there is a 20% time gap difference between what has been commissioned and
what is paid for. But there is a need now to focus on outcomes of support rather than time
care workers are with people. Good quality care does not always relate to the length of the
carer’s visit. However, if agencies are charging people for care they have not received this
18

C19
needs to be taken up with the agency. An “App” which is being developed to enable clients to
report on the quality of care received on a daily basis.
Risk to service delivery: workforce capacity is the greatest risk - and not being able to cope
with an increasing demand. Lack of capacity leads to poor quality and inconsistency in the
delivery of care. However, the Council has a duty of care to vulnerable people who have no
other options. The Council’s approach is to promote self-support and take up of community
resources before looking at what direct care it should provide. It is important that the Council
gets the message out to people in Kingston explaining what the role of the Council is and
what role they have in supporting themselves.
The Panel agreed to look at other aspects of Kingston Coordinated Care at a future meeting.
6.3 Kingston CCG’s Choosing Wisely Programme and engagement plan
The Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group (KCCG) asked the Panel to consider its
communications and engagement plan for the Choosing Wisely Programme. KCCG Chief
Officer, and a Kingston GP, explained the Choosing Wisely Programme to the Panel and
addressed a number of questions. They confirmed that the same approach is being
progressed by all 6 CCGs in South West London but no decisions have yet been made.
KCCG has a gross savings plan target of £11.7M in 2017/18 i.e. approximately 5% of the
CCG’s total budget. The programme if implemented fully could realise savings of £1.05M.
The Choosing Wisely programme proposes that the following items will no longer available
on prescription unless they are needed for medical reasons i.e. where patients have
potentially serious medical conditions:





Self-care medications for acute illnesses (such as colds and flu) that will get
better over time (could save £100K)
Some baby milks where alternatives can be purchased over the counter (could
save £150K)
Gluten free products (could save £46K)
Vitamin D supplements (could save £5K).

The CCG is also proposing changes to:



IVF (in vitro fertilisation) treatment eligibility criteria (could save £250K)
How patients are supported to be as ready as possible ahead of planned
surgery by addressing smoking and excess weight to ensure best possible
outcomes

The outcomes of the engagement programme will be considered by CCG Board (this has
been delayed by the purdah period of the snap General Election).
The CCG explained that a range of engagement platforms were being used - Survey
Monkey, paper surveys, direct approaches to relevant voluntary organisations such as the
Coeliac Society - and the CCG would welcome any further suggestions and the Panel
suggested:
19

C20







The importance of engaging with hard to reach groups e.g. Kingston Refugee
Action, the MILLAP day centre and those that currently do not access the
services under consideration e.g. younger people who may which to consider
their need for IVF in the future.
Using Facebook and putting information in the members’ information pack
Information is placed in GP surgeries and clinics
Venues need to attract passers-by – some were better than others.
Consideration needed to be given to material being produced in alternative
languages

In response to questions it was explained that any one time there are about 100 couples in
Kingston receiving IVF and members expressed concerns about the impact on low income
couples. Formal consultation could take place on IVF and other elements of the Choosing
Wisely programme at a later stage. (Richmond CCG had undertaken consultation on the
future level of IVF service).
The Chief Officer also confirmed that if a patient had a medical condition which required one
of the over the counter medications such as aspirin then the medication would still be
prescribed and this would ensure patient compliance.
The Advisory member for Healthwatch expressed concern about small numbers of people
who are in poverty who could be adversely affected by the cessation of prescriptions for
routine medications for colds and flu.
The engagement outcomes would be considered by the Health Overview Panel at a future
meeting.
7. Our Work Programme
The Health Overview Panel’s work programme is flexible to accommodate requests from the
NHS organisations about changes to service provisions and developments. An important
feature for the coming year will be regular updates on the Sustainability and Transformation
Plan for South West London to look at how this will impact locally on Kingston. We have
written out to a number of NHS organisations and voluntary organisations to ask for their
views on topics which it would be helpful for the Panel to consider. Whilst this is subject to
change our current list of topics includes the following:





Sustainability and Transformation Plan – impacts for Kingston e.g. intermediate care
Aspects of the Kingston Co-ordinated Care e.g. Home Care and how this links to the
STP
KCCG’s Choosing Wisely Programme engagement outcomes
Update from Kingston Hospital following discussions with the Chief Executive at the
March meeting.

8. Questions from Members of the Public
We received a wide range of questions including on the following areas: patients presenting
with alcohol problems at A&E, government funding for CAMHS, appointment system at KHT,
20

C21
GP winter hubs publicity, Eye Unit and off site clinics, Surrey Comet article on council and
health merger, recovering moneys from “health tourists” at KHT, usage of the new out of
hours service at Surbiton Health Centre.
9. SWL Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC)
JHOSCs are appointed where a proposal affects more than one council. The South West
London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee was formed early in 2014 to respond
quickly to requests to consider health consultations. The Chair and Vice Chair of the HOP
sat on this body and it is currently chaired by Councillor Carole Bonner from Croydon
Council.
The JHOSC has begun considering the South West London Sustainability and
Transformation Plan (see more detail on page 15). SWL JHOSC Agendas and Minutes can
be accessed from the following link: SWLJHOSC

Marian Morrison
Democratic Services Officer
16 June 2017

21

Appendix D

D1
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
28 MARCH 2017
6.30pm-9pm

Members of the Board
Councillors:
Councillor Julie Pickering (Co-Chair), Tom Davies, Sheila Griffin, Chris Hayes,
Cathy Roberts and Margaret Thompson
Representatives from Kingston CCG, Healthwatch and the Voluntary Sector:
Dr Nazim Jivani (Co- Chair), Dr Phil Moore*, Dr Peter Smith*, Grahame Snelling,
Patricia Turner
Council Officers (non voting):
Rob Henderson*, Iona Lidington and Stephen Taylor
Advisory Members (non voting):
Siobhan Clarke – Your Healthcare, Tonia Michaelides* – Kingston CCG, Dr Emma
Whicher* – South West London and St George’s Mental Health Trust, Jane Wilson –
Kingston Hospital NHS Trust, Gwen Kennedy* – NHS England, Dr Anthony Hughes*
- GP Chambers
* Absent
47.

QUESTIONS AND PUBLIC PARTICPATION
Mr Rob Robb, a Chessington resident, enquired why one to one therapy was not
offered locally for people with Personality Disorder. The Board was informed that the
issue was be considered as part of the development of the Mental Health Strategy,
referred to elsewhere in the meeting. A review of current provision and gaps within
that offer would be undertaken and service users given the opportunity to highlight
needs.

48.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

49.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

AND

ATTENDANCE

OF

Kathryn McDermott attended the meeting on behalf of the Kingston Clinical
Commissioning Group in place of Tonia Michaelides. Apologies for absence were
received from Rob Henderson, Dr Phil Moore and Dr Pete Smith.
1

D2
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017
Dr Mark Potter attended the meeting in an informal capacity on behalf of the South
West London and St Georges Mental Health Trust. His formal appointment to the
Board, in place of Dr Emma Whicher, was to be proposed at the meeting of Full
Council on 19 April 2017.
50.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2017 were confirmed and signed as
a true record.

51.

DIRECTORS UPDATE

Appendix A

The Board received updates from the Directors of Adult Social Care
and Childrens Services, the Interim Director of Public Health and the Chief Officer of
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group, on a variety of issues.
Members noted details of the establishment of the South West London Alliance
formed by the six local clinical commissioning groups so as to enable them to work
collectively to optimise health outcomes. Sarah Blow had been appointed
Accountable Officer and would lead a senior management team comprising the
directors of the three new Local Delivery Units (LDUs), one of which was Kingston
and Richmond. Tonia Michaelides, Chief Operating Officer of the Kingston CCG,
had been appointed Managing Director of the Kingston and Richmond LDU. Work
was being undertaken with Kingston Hospital to establish joint priorities and with
primary care providers across South West London to establish which community
services could be delivered in an acute setting.
The Board also noted details of the extended primary care services in Kingston.
There were now three sites, offering access to general practice between 8am to
8pm seven days a week. Funding had been secured to maintain, and possibly
extend, this provision in 2018/19. The hubs were operating at 65% utilisation but
Surbiton Health Centre, the longest established of the three, experienced much
higher usage on weekends. The evening appointment slots were proving very
popular, those on Sundays less so. An extensive communications campaign
promoting the service and seeking to encourage self care and signpost patients to
the most appropriate service was about to be launched. This was expected to lead
to a significant uptake in usage. Metrics analysing the extent to which this was
leading to channel shift, and patient feedback, would be reported to the next
meeting.
Other matters reported included;





The appointment of Iona Liddington as Interim Director of Public Health
Confirmation of Kingston’s allocation of the £2b of additional funding for Adult
Social Care announced by the Chancellor of the Exchequer – this would
amount to £1.18m in 2017/18, £1.28m in 2018/19 and £805,000 on 2019/20
Progression with completion of the action plans underpinning the Joint Health
and Wellbeing Strategy
The approval of the Joint Refugee and Migrant Strategy
2

D3
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017


52.

The receipt of funding by the CCG for technology which would potentially
enable GP practices to share telephone support, manage new appointments
in different ways and enable new forms of e-consultation, including video
consultations.

VERBAL UPDATES FROM KINGSTON VOLUNTARY ACTION
AND HEALTHWATCH KINGSTON
The Board received updates on activity from Patricia Turner of Kingston Voluntary
Action (KVA) and Grahame Snelling of Healthwatch.
Patricia Turner reported on arrangements for the KVA Health Conference on 27th
April, to which all were invited, and recent network meetings and confirmed that the
KVA’s training offer was now open.
Graham Snelling highlighted the work of the Mental Health Task Group, particularly
the role it had played in the co-production of the Mental Health Strategy which
featured elsewhere on the agenda. Over the coming year the Task Group intended
to review the iCope service and develop an ‘enter and view’ exercise with Tolworth
Hospital’s community service. The continuing use of the Quaker Centre as a venue
for a Community Café had been secured for the next year. He also reported that 16
grassroots engagement events had been held during the year and it was anticipated
that funding would be secured to extend the programme into 2017/18. Healthwatch
was continuing to engage with the Sustainable Transformation Plan process and the
Choosing Wisely proposals.

53.

IMMUNISATION IN KINGSTON - ASSURANCE REPORT

Appendix B

The Board received a presentation from NHS England on the commissioning of
immunisation services for Kingston residents including details of immunisation rates
amongst young children, school age children and adults.
Members noted that overall most childhood and adult immunisation rates were
stable, and higher than those in many other London Boroughs but remained below
levels for the rest of England and the World Health Organisation’s recommended
rate of 95% for childhood vaccinations. London presented particular challenges in
the take up of immunisations due to its highly mobile demographic and declining GP
workforce. Members were also informed of issues arising from the global shortage
of the BCG vaccine and the arrangements for the targeted usage of the limited
supply of unlicensed replacement stock. Efforts were being made to improve the
uptake of the shingles vaccination, which had fallen slightly. The London CCG
Chairs had requested that shingles vaccines be delivered at the same time as flu
and other vaccinations in order to reduce the need for return visits and to simplify
the individual age banding so that the vaccination was open to all between 70-79.
The Board concurred with the recommendations of the Director for Public Health
that NHS England should provide outline proposals to increase uptake rates,
improve quality and reduce variation as well as updates to the Kingston
Immunisation Group on the progress of the school age immunisation programme
and progress with the BCG contract with the local maternity provider.
3

D4
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017
54.

MENTAL HEALTH STRATEGY

Appendix C

The Board received details of the development and content of the final draft of the
Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 2017-21.
It was estimated that some 21,000 people within the Borough were presently
experiencing some form of depression and anxiety. Members noted that the
Strategy, which had been co-produced in conjunction with over 200 local people,
sought a shift from hospital based models of care to prevention, self-care and
recovery with high quality, joined up support closer to home. Priorities for 2017
focused on workplace health, prevention in respect of Early Years, Children,
Families and Schools, peer support, a Directory of Services, developing primary
care and developing a mental wellbeing hub with a triage service/single point of
access. It was emphasised that the Strategy did not exist in isolation and many
aspects of it built on ongoing initiatives with a range of partners.
The Board recognised the need to managing pressures on individuals who were
experiencing low level symptoms of mental ill health so as to minimise the risk of
deterioration and the requirement for intervention. To this end it was acknowledged
that the Strategy needed to reflect the requirement to help employers, including local
businesses and schools, understand the benefits of supporting staff struggling with
mental illness. It was noted that Kingston was already the lead Borough in London
with respect to the Healthy Workplace Charter and every secondary school now
possessed a Mental Health Plan and Young Peoples Mental Health Ambassadors.
The importance of improving the point of transition between childrens and adults
services, and tackling issues arising from inadequate housing were also noted.
It was agreed to authorise the Director of Public Health to approve changes to the
Strategy in consultation with the Co-Chairs of the Board.
RESOLVED that –
1. The Director of Public Health be authorised to approve amendments to the
draft Strategy in consultation with the Co-Chairs of the Health & Wellbeing
Board;
2. The Strategy move to implementation phase; and
3. Update reports be received at suitable time intervals, for example at the end
of Years 1, 3 and 5.
Voting – Unanimous
55.

CHILD AND
UPDATE

ADOLESCENT

MENTAL

HEALTH

SERVICES Appendix D

The Board received an update on the delivery of the Local Transformation Plan for
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS). The core aims of the Plan
were to reduce the number of children and young people referred for treatment,
reduce waiting times, increase the range of evidence based interventions available
and enhance skills and confidence amongst the wider workforce in managing
emotional and mental health issues and to bring about a long term reduction in the
4

D5
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017
number of children admitted with acute issues to Tier 4 services and/or requiring
long term residential places. Minor amendments to the Plan had been submitted to
NHS England in late 2016 to satisfy assurance measures.
Members noted details of recent activity including the receipt of further funding to
support children and young people with mental health issues in the Youth Justice
system, the commissioning of on-line counselling for children and young people up
to the age of 22 and a planned review of the enhanced Eating Disorder Service.
Priorities for 2017/18 were a review of the Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)
Pathway and action to address the historically long waiting times for access and
implementation of the Care Treatment Review Process and Care Crisis Standards in
order to prevent hospital admissions and reduce the length of stay for those
requiring admission. The Board was informed that investment in the current financial
year had already seen waiting times for access to diagnostic assessments for 6-18
year olds on the ASD pathway reduce from 46 weeks to 40 weeks and it was
anticipated that it would be within the NICE guideline of 12 weeks by December
2017.
56.

DEMENTIA STRATEGY UPDATE

Appendix E

Consideration of this item was deferred to the next meeting of the Board.
57.

COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Appendix F

The Board gave further consideration to the development of a protocol for a joint
approach to communications and engagement activities on health and wellbeing
issues. It was anticipated that this would enhance the ability to collaborate
strategically in order to coordinate activity, gain insight and maximise the value of
communications and engagement exercises. The Council and the CCG were to be
the lead coordinators but all relevant partner organisations would be involved in the
initiative.
It was noted that a joint calendar of communications activity had now been
developed and communication channels across the partnership would be shared
with each other in order to circulate messages as widely as possible. Agreement
had also been reached on joint approaches to relevant press releases and social
media campaigns and, where appropriate, the sharing of resources for community
engagement events. There would be liaison over the planning of public events in
order to enhance the potential benefits and reduce duplication. Where joint
consultations were undertaken the exercise would be created collaboratively and the
most suitable channel for the audience utilised. Evaluation of communications and
engagement activity would also be shared.
RESOLVED that –
The direction set out above and in the agenda report be endorsed and updates on
the communications and campaigns plan be provided to each meeting of the Board
during the 2017/18 Municipal Year.
Voting – Unanimous
5

D6
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017
58.

SELF CARE KINGSTON

Appendix G

The Board received details of plans for the launch of Self Care Kingston, an initiative
designed to empower people with the confidence and information to look after
themselves where they could and to know where to go for help when required.
It was anticipated that the provision of early advice and signposting to local
community based, often voluntary sector led, offers would reduce demand on higher
need services and help people stay connected and supported in their local
community. While it was recognised that health messages, particularly those
targeting parents, often emphasised the need to seek advice quickly, it was
necessary to provide the education and reassurance which would give people more
confidence in dealing with minor ailments and to enable informed decisions to be
made about where and how to access health advice.
Members noted that a website was due to be launched in the coming weeks in order
to enable residents to access information and advice and find out more about health
improvement services in Kingston. The involvement of key partners in the planning
and delivery of the initiative would ensure synergy of health and wellbeing
messages and national programmes and awareness days would be used to provide
a structure and focus for activities. It was considered that there was a good fit with
other local programmes such as social prescribing, Kingston Coordinated Care and
Kingston Voluntary Action’s Health Navigators and it would facilitate joined up
approaches to enable people to find their own solutions and work with local
employers. The proposal also matched well with the prevention strand of the South
West London Sustainability and Transformation Plan.
RESOLVED that –
1. The proposal for the Self Care Kingston Initiative be approved;
2. Support for the initiative from Board partners and their commitment to include
this way of working in their delivery plans and staff training be sought; and
3. An update report be submitted to the Board in September 2017.
Voting – Unanimous
59.

KINGSTON COORDINATED CARE UPDATE

Appendix H

The Board received a report on progress in respect of the development and
implementation of the Kingston Coordinated Care programme. Members noted
recent activity and next phase key deliverables for a variety of programme projects
including commissioning and contracting and the New Model of Care, the
transformation of Home Care, the Kingston Care Record and Active and Supportive
Communities.
It was noted that Adult Social Care and CCG Commissioners and the provider
alliance were working through the detail of the proposed delivery of the new model
of care from April. A Memorandum of Understanding between the parties would set
out an overarching agreement to the existing contractual arrangements. Meetings
were also taking place with providers to inform the development of a new Home
6

D7
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017
Care model. There were opportunities to explore the development of a model of
small autonomous groups of home care teams working within a more sustainable
model. Development of the Kingston Care Record, formerly known as the Kingston
Care Passport, continued with more patient data to be added in the near future,
including community and mental health and adult social care records. The next
phase of the Active and Supportive Communities programme would be to identify
the key role that the network of organisations could play in social prescribing and
linking to the new model of care.
The Board also addressed the implications of the CCG’s decision not to proceed
with the proposed integrated commissioning unit with the Council as the
establishment of the joint Local Delivery Unit with Richmond CCG made
commissioning purely on a Kingston footprint more difficult. The CCG emphasised
that it remained committed to working with the Council on an integrated basis.
Agreement had been reached on key priority areas on which there would continue to
be a collaborative focus, namely learning disabilities and mental health, Kingston
Coordinated Care and the commissioning of childrens services. The view was
expressed that joint commissioning across CCGs should provide clearer direction to
acute providers. Elected Members, however, articulated the Council’s
disappointment both with the decision and the lack of consultation which was felt to
be inconsistent with the relationship between the parties.
RESOLVED that –
the progress that has been made to date be recognised
Voting – unanimous
60.

BETTER CARE FUND QUARTERLY RETURN

Appendix I

The Board received details of the Quarter 3 progress report on the delivery of the
Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan for 2016/17. It was noted that there had been no
significant changes from Quarter 2. Kingston now met all national conditions and
was on course to attain its BCF financial targets. Of the four supporting metrics on
which data was available to assess progress two were on target and one showed
improved performance. The Council and the CCG were about to undertake a review
of the BCF to ensure that the effectiveness of its funding was maximised.
61.

HEALTH OVERVIEW PANEL - MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Health Overview Panel held on 14 March 2017
were noted.

62.

URGENT ITEMS AUTHORISED BY THE CHAIR
There were no urgent items.

7

D8
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
28 MARCH 2017
Signed…………………………………………………….Date…………………
Co- Chair

8

D9
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
15 JUNE 2017
6:32 pm – 7:49 pm

Members of the Board
Councillors:
Councillor Kevin Davis (Co- Chair), Councillor Linsey Cottington*, Councillor Tom
Davies, Councillor Chris Hayes, Councillor Cathy Roberts*, Councillor Hugh
Scantlebury, and Councillor Margaret Thompson
Representatives from Kingston CCG, Healthwatch and the Voluntary Sector:
Dr Nazim Jivani* (Co- Chair), Dr Phil Moore*, Dr Peter Smith, Grahame Snelling,
and Patricia Turner
Council Officers (non voting):
Rob Henderson*, Iona Lidington and Stephen Taylor
Advisory Members (non voting):
Siobhan Clarke* – Your Healthcare, Tonia Michaelides – Kingston CCG, Dr Mark
Potter – South West London and St George’s Mental Health Trust, Jane Wilson –
Kingston Hospital NHS Trust, Gwen Kennedy – NHS England and Dr Anthony
Hughes – Kingston GP Chambers
* Absent
1.

QUESTIONS AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There were no questions at the start of the meeting. Mr Rob Robb asked questions
later in the meeting.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

3.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

AND

ATTENDANCE

OF

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cathy Roberts and Linsey
Cottington. Apologies were also received from Dr Naz Jivani, Dr Phil Moore and
Siobhan Clarke. Grant Henderson attended as substitute for Siobhan Clarke.

1

D10
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
4.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2017 were confirmed and signed as a
true record.

5.

DIRECTORS UPDATE

Appendix A

The Board receive updates from the Directors of Adult Social Care, Children’s
Services, the Interim Director of Public Health and Place (communications) on the
following matters.
Annual Public Health Report 2016/17 – the final frontier: sexual and
reproductive health in Kingston –The statutory annual report was launched on 10
May and is probably the only annual public health report on this topic. Members
heard that Kingston Public Health reports have a high standing nationally and it has
been shortlisted for an award.
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) – PNAs are required to be produced
every 3 years and are designed to assess the provision of pharmacy services in the
locality. The last Kingston PNA was published in March 2015 and the new
assessment process led by Public Health will commence in July 2017 and comply
with regulatory requirements. Members heard that optimal use of pharmacies can
help release pressures on high level services such as GPs and hospitals. There will
also be liaison with nearby boroughs on data sharing. Future updates will be given
to the Board.
Child Health Information System – Your Healthcare is the lead provider of NHS
child health information services across south west London and progress is being
made to develop a single clinical record to provide child health information for 0-19
year olds. This will provide access by health care professionals and enable
improved decision making and reduce the risk of missing information. Members
welcomed this progress and heard that the “Red Book” will be unaffected, and this
can be provided in hard format or electronically.
Section 75 Update – S75 was extended to 31 May 17 to enable completion of data
transfer and caseloads. The mental health social care team remains co-located with
the SWLSTG community teams and wards at Tolworth hospital unlike neighbouring
boroughs have taken back social care teams to council sites. The new Mental
Health Social Care Team arrangements are now operational and include direct
referrals to the team from SWLSTG and safeguarding adults alerts via the Contact
Centre and Access Team. Referral pathways are being fine tuned with primary and
secondary care to establish a joint working protocol across adult social care. This
will incorporate information sharing and collaborative working arrangements.
KCCG Stakeholder survey – engagement took place during January and February
with a response rate of 69%. Scores have improved in most areas and a plan is
being developed to further improve working relationships with stakeholders.
Communications and Campaigns – the communications protocol was signed off
by the Board at the March meeting. Self care webpages are now available on the
2

D11
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
Council’s website. Further local information and monthly themed events from health
partners are also added. The theme for June is Carers.
Health and Wellbeing Board work programme – Members noted the work
programme set out at Annex 1 to the report. Notable items for the next meeting
included: Self care in Kingston, Kingston Co-ordinated Care and Primary Care
Extended hours.
The Leader put forward two suggestions for the Board to consider as part of the
work programme:
 The Mayor of London’s campaign “Thrive London – improving Londoners’
mental health and wellbeing”
 London health inequalities strategy
6.

KINGSTON COORDINATED CARE UPDATE

Appendix B

The report (for information) updated the Board on the progress of Kingston
Coordinated Care (KCC) which is now moving into implementation. The report
covered home care transformation, new model of care, joint commissioning, active
and supportive communities and the Kingston care record. There is still further
development taking place around the establishment of wellbeing teams to deliver
home care and the integrated model of health and care.
The Director gave a verbal overview of the key areas. The Board heard that
benefits of the new ways of working were being seen already. There is now a single
point of access and co-location of RBK with Your Healthcare staff.
A locality team is being piloted in New Malden at Holmwood Surgery, linking with
other nearby GP practices and involving a multidisciplinary approach. The pilot will
be rolled out to the other three localities (Chessington, Surbiton and Kingston).
A risk stratification tool is being used to identify the 10% people in the community
with highest risk of unscheduled care needs in order to focus care and support on
their needs. Wellbeing teams are being developed as an alternative to home care
and are clustered with surgeries. These teams will become part of the
multidisciplinary locality teams.
In response to a question about the use of care agencies, the Director explained
that there is a mixed market approach in partnership with the Provider Alliance. The
improved model which will be starting in September is moving away from time and
task and is linking into locality team work and will better meet people’s health and
social care needs.
A home carer app is being developed with the LGA for carers to update on how
people are and help with handover. This will be tested in the autumn and will form
an integral part of the new way of working. The Kingston care record (formally the
Kingston passport) has rolled out and now includes 400 people across health and
social care agencies.
In relation to the Kingston Care Record Legal advice has been received on an
3

D12
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
information governance issue on data sharing with NHS services and it is envisaged
that full access to health and social care data will be possible.
Members heard that there has been a lot of progress on collaborative
commissioning since the March Board and the approach is moving away from
integration. However working is continuing around the same key priorities – mental
health, learning disability, children and Kingston coordinated care. A draft 2 year
joint commissioning plan will be available in July covering these priorities in a joined
up way. The commissioning team has been appointed and is based at Hollyfield
Road
A question was asked by Mr Robb about how the care system can assist with a new
resident in South of the Borough. Due to frequent falls, ambulances have attended
almost on a daily basis. Directors confirmed that the new model of care is aiming to
help to prevent this type of scenario. It was also confirmed that the NHS has
systems to work with “frequent flyers” in the NHS and that Kingston has no patients
who are included on the “frequent flyer” list. Members heard that Public Health is
taking forward work to enable frontline staff in housing and libraries to flag people up
to reduce isolation and high dependency on high level services.
RESOLVED that: the update is noted
Voting – unanimously in favour
7.

VERBAL UPDATES FROM KINGSTON VOLUNTARY ACTION
AND HEALTHWATCH KINGSTON
The Board received updates on activity from Patricia Turner of Kingston Voluntary
Action (KVA) and Grahame Snelling of Healthwatch.
Patricia Turner, KVA, reported on the following areas:


the successful KVA Conference held in April included an update about the
Healthy Living Pharmacy Award and presentation of the awards to the first
fully accredited pharmacies. It also included a presentation about Connect
Well Essex, a social prescribing model including training which Kingston is
looking at with a view to adopting.



The Active and Supportive Communities Network has now met and it is
beginning to develop links with SPAR.



Digital Health project was been evaluated at DH in April and approved.
Training dates are being offered during the year and Healthy Living
Pharmacies will be attending next session.

4

D13
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017


A digital communications tool is being developed as part of the self-care
programme and develop digital.



The July theme is volunteering and learning and KVA is working with KCIL on
this.



Network meetings - Children’s and young people and wellbeing and adult
safeguarding and self-care updates. Addressing equality of access.

Grahame Snelling, Healthwatch reported on the following areas:


Healthwatch are recruiting new members, board members and trustees.



Healthwatch will be launching the “Thrive Kingston” mental health strategy
on 28 July and have developed a work plan to continue to deliver this.



Healthwatch’s annual report is almost complete and the Chair of
Healthwatch requested that this be brought to the next meeting.



A further financial awarded had been received for the Grassroots
Engagement Programme and this will support further work in the coming
year.



Conversations are taking place with Richmond Healthwatch about how to
work more closely together.

Members welcomed work on mental health and in response to a question about
whether workshops in schools had taken place further details were provided.
Richmond undertook a review of what children and young people think of the mental
health service they receive and the strategy has been developed in response to this.
RESOLVED that: the updates are noted
Voting – unanimously in favour
8.

JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY REFRESH 2017 - Appendix C
2019
The report provided the Board with a summary of the feedback received following
consultation on the refreshed Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWBS) and
Action Plans 2017 - 2019. The JHWBS is the framework underpinning the work of
the Board and focusses on areas which require a collective health and wellbeing
board contribution to achieve the most impact.
The four current agreed priorities which have associated actions are:
 Children and young people
 Mental health
 Older people and people with long term conditions
 Addressing the needs of socially excluded and disadvantaged communities
5

D14
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
The Board heard that 84 comments were received and were summarised in Annex 2
of the report. The Director of Public Health pointed out that it was encouraging to
note that the comments received reflected the current priorities and that the four
groups are still the right ones.
The Dementia strategy fits well with the JHWBS and prevention early intervention
for this area will be cost effective. Members heard about a number of approaches to
improve children and young peoples’ resilience, for example, strategies for coping
with loss and bereavement, exam pressures and reducing levels of anxiety.
Actions to assist people with Autistic Spectrum Disorder include information and
advice especially for those transitioning to adult services. There are also a range of
other actions including learning from case reviews, childhood obesity, parenting
skills in cooking and eating, sport, feel safe and avoiding risky behaviour, plus
support for young carers.
Actions around Mental Health involve a co-production model with a number of
partners for example developing the Crisis service to prevent admission and
approaches for longer term crisis. Perinatal mental health is a priority going forward
and peer to peer support is a key approach here. Improving access to housing for
people with mental health problems is an important priority action. For older people
there are actions around prevention and social prescribing to help tackle loneliness.
One approach is using libraries differently and conversing with people to find out
about people’s home and social situations. Opportunities can be used to offer
information
and
advice
and
assisting
with
avoiding
dependency.
There are actions to deliver a range of resources into areas of disadvantaged and
marginalised and communities including opportunities for cancer screening for
disadvantaged groups.
The board heard that where people perhaps choose not to accept advice, various
“nudges” and encouragements can be given such as vitamin supplements for
people who take too much alcohol and in schools serving chopping up fruit to make
it more attractive rather than offer a single piece of fruit which are more likely to be
avoided.
Mr Robb raised the question about possible changes to autism assessments being
considered by South West London and St George’s Mental Health Trust.
Assessments are expensive costing of the order of £3,000 and demand has
increased. It is suggested that assessments could be provided differently at
schools. Mr Robb expressed the view that this approach would present a problem
with out of area children needing assessment and mental health services for
children should be available.
Members heard that schools are keen to support wellbeing and the Mental Health
First Aid approach has been introduce which is around how to approach, have
conversation and support those with higher concerns relating to early stages of
anxiety and depression. Diagnosis of autistic spectrum can be multifactorial but this
sits in health services. It was confirmed that the CCG as commissioners are aware
of the issues and working to provide solutions.
6

D15
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
Members heard that SWLSTG used to receive 7 referrals a week and over the
course of a year this has increased to 30 a week. The Medical Director confirmed
that the Trust is in discussion with commissioners about how to manage this and
that there will be no change to the service in thenext 12 months. The objective is to
match increasing demand with appropriate care. He added that discussions took
place at the Trust Board earlier in the day and a number of mothers attended to
seek reassurance.
Members heard that mental health first aid in schools follows a national model and
public health has trained up a number of teaching staff and volunteers who cascade
to others. The model is running in the borough’s secondary schools.
Members heard that the JHWBS is likely to focus more on inequalities from 2018
onwards when budgets tighten.
RESOLVED that:
1. The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and actions plans are shared with
wider partners to raise awareness of the priorities for improving health and
wellbeing in Kingston; and
2. Progress reports be brought to the Board twice a year with the first report
being submitted in November 2017.
Voting: Unanimously in favour
9.

DEMENTIA STRATEGY UPDATE

Appendix D

The five year Dementia Strategy was approved in 2015 and the report outlined the
progress with implementing the strategy. The Strategy, Dementia Action Alliance
Action Plan and the strategic objectives were presented at annexes 1, 2 and 3.
Estimates of the numbers of people in Kingston with dementia currently and in 2027
are 1,500 and 2,100 respectively and the costs of meeting the needs of people with
dementia are increasing. It is estimated that the current cost of providing health
services for 1,500 people with dementia is more than £9m pa and additional social
care costs of £19m. However, 65% of residential and 40% of community based
social care costs are met by the users themselves. The total combined costs to
health and social care are £18m pa.
The report set out details about progress made with raising understanding of the
condition and developing a dementia friendly Kingston. Members heard that the
Dementia Action Alliance (DAA) has undertaken 19 training sessions for dementia
friends and 90 people have completed the course. A key objective is to raise
community awareness especially with younger people and support intergenerational
approaches. It was involved in Carers week and continues to work with GP
surgeries, SWLSTG for people with high levels of need and people discharged from
7

D16
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
Kingston Hospital. DAA organisation is seeking formal recognition by the
Alzheimer’s Society.
Other steps include the development of a comprehensive directory of all dementia
services in the Borough and a Dementia week was held in May plus a range of
Council approaches in its various departments such as sports and leisure.
In regard to diagnosis of dementia by GPs the national target is 66.7%. Kingston is
currently achieving 59.1% and is amongst the lowest in the country. An action plan
has been submitted to NHS England about further steps which are being taken.
Members heard that the calculation methodology for the current and future years
has changed and this has reduced Kingston's performance by 4.7%. Members
heard that if the action plan is followed and the diagnosis rate does not increase this
could signify that prevalence in Kingston is in fact lower.
RESOLVED that:
1. The Kingston Dementia Action Alliance Action plan as set out at Annex 2 is
endorsed; and
2. A further report on progress is submitted to the Board meeting in January
2018.
Voting: Unanimously in favour
10.

BETTER CARE FUND PLAN 2016/17 QUARTERLY REPORT & Appendix E
2017-19 ARRANGEMENTS
The Board was asked to review the Quarter 4 progress report on the delivery of the
Better Care Fund Plan for 2016/17. Due to presentation difficulties much of the
detail is only available on Annex 1 on line.
Kingston CCG received confirmation that the Better Care Fund Plan received
approval on 26 October 2016. In Kingston the Better Care Fund Plan continues to
have Kingston Coordinated Care programme at its heart. The Q4 report differs little
from the earlier Q3 submission. Kingston is on track to meet the BCF financial
metrics and now meets all of the national conditions; use of the NHS number as the
consistent identifier for health and social care was the final condition to be achieved.
Members heard that the final guidance for 2017/18 is expected imminently and was
delayed due to the election purdah. The key messages for 2017/18 are the
announcement of extra money to support further integration of health and social
care by 2020. Draft guidance templates are being issued to develop BCF and the
NHS contribution to Adult Social Care has to be maintained in line with inflation.
The Managing Director of Kingston and Richmond CCGs confirmed that a meeting
had taken place with Kingston’s Director of Adult Social Care earlier in the day to
consider updates to the plan. The revised plan will be brought back to the Board.

8

D17
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
15 JUNE 2017
In response to a question about discharge from hospital where a person’s needs are
complex, it was confirmed that they were discharged with a package of care which
included reablement. Your Healthcare confirmed that it successfully deals with 80100 people a month. Assessment for a long term placement would then follow if
required.
RESOLVED that: the Better Care Fund 2016/17 Q4 report is approved.
Voting: Unanimously in favour
11.

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

Appendix F

The Board was requested to consider the appointment of representatives to five
outside bodies associated with the committee’s remit.
RESOLVED that: the following appointments are made:
Kingston Hospital NHS FoundationTrust’s Council of Governors (term three years) –
(2)
Councillor Ken Smith and Councillor Margaret Thompson
South West London and St George’s NHS Mental Health Trust’s Council of
Governors (term three years) – (1) - Councillor Chris Hayes
South West London Sustainability and Transformation Plan Leadership Group (term
2017/17 Municipal Year) (1) – Councillor Kevin Davis
Kingston Primary Care Commissioning Board (term 2017/17 Municipal Year) (1) –
Councillor Cathy Roberts
London Health and Wellbeing Chairs’ Board (term 2017/17 Municipal Year) (1) –
Councillor Kevin Davis
Voting: Unanimously in favour

Signed…………………………………………………….Date…………………
Chair

9

